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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Boston, Massachusetts:

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
rernaining fund information of the City of Boston, Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2002, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Boston’s management. Qur responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of certain entities, which represent 3% and 11% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the
aggregate remaining fund information and 29% and 22% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the
discretely presented component onits. Those financial staternents were audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the financial statements, insofar as it relates to the:
aggregate remaining fund information and the discretely presented component units and their effects on the
governmental and fiduciary activities, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issned by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit inclodes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the goverumental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Boston, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2002, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in note 3, the City, in fiscal 2002, has impleriented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statements No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments, No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments — Omnibus, and No. 38, Certain Financial
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Statement Note Disclosures, and GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain
Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements.

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Boston’s basic financial statements. The combining financial statements and
schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial staternents of the City of Boston. This information has been subjected to
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opimion is fairly
presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 12 and the schedules of funding progress and
employers’ contributions on page 55 are not required parts of the basic financial statements, but are
supplementary information required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures which consisted principally of inquires of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate veport dated
November 22, 2002 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read
in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The information inctuded in the introductory and statistical sections of this report has not been subjected to

auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
eXxpress no opinion on it. ‘

KPrMe LP

November 22, 2002



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The City of Boston provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis to provide additional information to the
readers of the City’s Basic Financial Statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the City of Boston is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. Readers are encouraged to consider this
information in conjunction with the additional information that is fummished in the City’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR).

Because the City of Boston is implementing new reporting standards for this fiscal year with significant changes
in content and structure, much of the information is not easily comparable to prior years. However, in future
years, comparisons will be more meaningful and will go further in explaining the City’s financia! position and
results of operations.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Boston's financial statements.
The City’s basic financial statements include three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required
supplementary information regarding historical pension information. These components are described below:

Basic Financial Statements

The financial statements include two types of financial statements that present different views of the City — the
Government-Wide Financial Statements and the Fund Financial Statements. These financial statements aiso
include the Notes to the Financial Statements that explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detail.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the City’s operations in a manner similar to a
private-sector business. The statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the City’s
financial position, which assists in assessing the City’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal year. These are
prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This
basically means they follow methods that are similar to those used by most businesses. They take into account ail
revenues and expenses connected with the fiscal year even if cash involved has not been received or paid. The
government-wide financial statements include two statements:

The statement of net assers presents all of the government’s assets and labilities, with the difterence between the
two reported as “net assets”. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
staternent for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods {such as uncollecied taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave). This statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each function of the City.

See independent auditor’s report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Both of the above financial statements have separate sections for the three different types of city programs or
activities. These three types of activities are:

Governmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (federal and state grants). Most services normally associated with city government fall into this
category, including general government, human services, public safety, public works, property and development,
parks and recreation, library, schools, county, public health programs, judgment and claims, retirement Costs,
state and district assessments, debt service, and other employee benefits.

Business-Type Activities — These functions normaily are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges to external users of goods and services. These business-type activities of the
City include the operations of the City of Boston Convention Center Bond Fund and the Hospital Bond Fund.

Discretely Presented Component Units — These are operations for which the City has financial accountability but
they have certain independent qualities as well. For the most part, these entities operate similar to private-sector
businesses and the business-type activities described above.

The City’s four discretely presented major component units are:

Boston Public Health Comumission

Boston Redevelopment Authority

Economic Development Industrial Corporation
Trustees of the Boston Public Library

Complete financial statements of the individual component umits can be obtained from their réspective
administrative offices. Additional information about the City’s component units are presented in the notes to the
financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion and analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City, like otber local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related iegal requirements.

The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the city government, reporting the City’s operations in
more detail than the government-wide statements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three
categories. It is important to note that these fund categories use different accounting approaches and should be
interpreted differently. The three categories of funds are:

1.Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Most of the basic services provided by the City are financed
through governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, the govermnmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources. They also focus on the balances of spendable resources avatlable at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be usefu! in evaluating the government’s near-term financing requirements. This

See independent auditor’s report.
4 {Continued)



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

approach is known as using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis .of accounting. Under this approach, revenues are recorded when cash is received or when susceptible to
accrual. Expenditures are recorded when liabilities are incurred and due. These statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the City’s finances that assists in determining whether there will be adequate financial
resources available to meet the current needs of the City.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful 1o compare. the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-~term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and the governmental activities. These
reconciliations are presented on the page immediately following each governmental fund financial statement.

The City has four governmental funds. Each fund is presented in a separate column in the governmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances.
The City’s three major governmental funds are — the General Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, and the Capital .
Projects Fund. All non-major governmental funds are combined in the “Other Governmental Funds” columns on
these statements. The govermmental funds financial statements can be found immediately following the
government-wide statements.

Of the City’s four governmental funds, the General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally adopted.
The Budgetary Statement or Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis is presented on
page 19. This Statement provides a comparison of the original and final budget and the actual expenditores for
the current and prior year.

In accordance with state law and regulations, the City’s legally adopted general fund budget is prepared on a
“budgetary” basis instead of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Among the key differences
between these two sets of accounting principles are that “budgetary” records property tax as it is levied, while
GAAP records it as it becomes susceptible to accrual, “budgetary” records certain activities and transactions in
the general fund that GAAP records in separate funds, and “budgetary” records as an expenditure any amount
raised to cover for a prior year deficit, and as a revenue any available funds raised from prior year surpluses,
while GAAP ignores these impacts from prior years. The difference in accounting principles inevitably leads to
varying results in excess or deficiency of revenues over expenditures. Additional information and a reconciliation
of “budgetary” to GAAP statements is provided in Note 4 of the financial statements.

2.Proprietary Fuynds Financial Statements ~ These funds are used to show activities that operate more like those
of commercial enterprises. Because these funds charge fees for services provided to outside customers including
local governments, they are known as enterprise funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as
the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Like the government-wide financial statements,
proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of accounting. No reconciliation is needed between the
government-wide financial statements for business-type activities and the proprietary fund financial statements,

The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found immediately following the governmental fund
financial statements.

See independent auditor’s report.
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3.Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements - These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the City govermnment. Fiduciary funds are not reflected. in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds 1s much like that used for proprietary funds. They use the accrual basis of
accounting.

The City's fiduciary funds are the Employee Retirement Funds (the State-Boston Retirement System), which
accounts for the transactions, assets, liabilities, and net assets of the City employees’ pension plan, and the
Private Purpose Trust Funds which includes money held and administered by the City on behalf of third parties.

The fiduciary funds financial statements can be found immediately following the proprietary fund financial
statemients.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and the fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
immediately following the fiduciary funds’ financial statements.

Required Supplementary Informatmn

The basic financial statemients are followed by a section of required supplementary information, which includes a
schedule of funding progress and a schedule of employer contributions for the State-Boston Retirement System.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

This analysis is based on the statement of net assets and statement of activities found on pages 13 and 14 of the
financial staterents.

Government-Wide Highlights:

Net Assets — The total net assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at fiscal year ending June 30, 2002 by
$197.2 million (presented as “net assets™), Of this amount, $22.9 million was reported as “‘unrestricted net
assets”, Unrestricted net assets represent the amount available to be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors.

Changes in Net Assets — The City’s total net assets increased by $179.5 million in fiscal year 2002. Net assets of
governmental activities increased by $147.1 million, while net assets of the business-type activities showed an
increase of $32.4 million.

Net Assets

The components of net assets are comprised of the following: the investment in capital assets such as land,
buildings, equipment, and infrastructure (road, bridges, and other immovable assets), less any related debt used to
acquire that asset that is still outstanding — the amount is a deficit of $92.7 million indicating that the amount of
capital debt outstanding exceeds the net book value of the City’s fixed assets. The deficit in “Invested in capitai
assets, net of related debt” results, in part from the capitalization threshold established by the City whereby
capital assets of less that $15,000 in cost are not capitalized for financial statement purposes, from the refunding
of capital debt which results in monetary savings to the City. but often extends the life of the debt beyond the

See independent auditor’s report.
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depreciabie lives of the related capital assets and from other non-capitalized financing costs related to the debt.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequentially, these assets are not available
for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Boston’s Net Assets-Primary Government
(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total

Current assets 3 905,630 68,079 973,718

Capital assets 781,942 — 781942

Other assets 2,102 1,555 3,657

Due from others 19,250 129,103 148,353

Total assets 1,708,933 198,737 1,907.670

Noncurrent habilities 1,014,892 251,150 1,266,042

Other liabilities 437311 7,104 444 415

' Total Habilities 1,452,203 258,254 1,710,457
Invested in capital assets net of related debt (92,711) — (92,711).

Restricted 266,999 — 266,999

Unrestricted 82,447 (39517 22,925

Total net assets $ 256,730 (59511 197,213

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is reporting a positive balance for the government as a whole. The
negative balance reported for Business-Type activities is offset by the positive balance reported for Government
Activities. The negative balance in Business-Type Activities is a result of special obligation and revenue bonds
cutstanding at year-end. These costs are intended to be covered by user fees and charges to external users of
goods and services.

Changes in Net Assets

The City’s governmental activities net assets increased by $147.1 million from the prior year. The City’s two
largest sources of revenues were property and excise taxes of $1.08 billion and $844.7 million operating and
capital grants from the federal and state governments. Approximately 50.4% of the City’s total revenue came
from taxes, while 12.3 % resulted from grants and contributions (including federal aid). Charges for various
goods and services, interest and other miscellaneous revenues totaled $237.2 miflion. The City’s expenses cover
a range of services. The largest expenses were for schools ($768.4 million), public safety ($429.2 million),
property and development ($112.8 million), county ($109.3 million), employee benefits ($101.1) million and
retirement costs {$82.0 million). In 2002, governmental activities expenses exceeded program revenues (i.e., user
charges, operating grants and capital grants) by $1.31 billion. This shortfall was covered primarily through taxes
{$1.10 billien) and non-specific grants of ($272.2 million).

See independent auditor’s report.
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Net revenues from business-type activiiies exceeded expenses by $32.4 million due primarily to the receipt of
grant funds exceeding the City’s contribations to the State for the construction of a convention center.

City of Boston Changes in Net Asset-Primary Government
(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
Expenditures:
General Governmnent (59,084) — {59,084)
Human Services {863) — {863)
Public Safety (309,260 — (309,260h
Public Works (58,962) — {58,962)
Property and Development (37.623) —_ (37,623)
Parks and Recreation {18,230y -— (18,230)
Library (32,982) —_— (32,982)
Schools {423,765) — (423,765)
County (13,397) — (13,397)
Public Health Programs (64.537) —_ {64,537)
Judgments and Claims (2,724) — (2,7124)
Retirement Costs {79,837) — (79,837)
Other Employee Benefits (101,059) — (101,059)
State & District Assessments (67,769 — (67,76%9)
Interest on long-term debt (38,514) — (38,514)
Convention Center — 19,660 19,660
Hospital — (8,232) (8,232)
Total expenditures (1,308,600) 11,428 (1,297,178
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 967,762 — 967,762
Excises 109,503 5,079 114,582
Payment in lieu of taxes 36,332 o 36,332
Grants and contributions not restricted 272,150 — 272,150
Investment income 23,097 8.394 31,691
Miscellaneous 33,568 7,303 40,871
Special Item - gain on sale of capital assets 13,300 — 13,300
Total revenues 1,455,712 20,976 1,476,688
Change in net assets 147,106 32,404 179,510
Net assets — beginning 109,624 {91,921) 17,703
Net assets — ending 256,730 (59,51 197,213
See independent auditor’s report.
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Revenues - Primary Government
Fiscal Year 2002
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See independent auditor’s report.
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Business-Type Activities

The business-type activities increased the City’s change in net assets by $32.4 million. This resulted from a $19.6
million increase in grants for the Convention Center and $21.0 million in excises, investment income and
miscellaneous revenue offset by $8.2 million interest expense for the Hospital revenue bonds.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

This analysis is based on the Fund Financial Statements on pages 15 through 25.

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Fund Highlights:

Governmental Funds — Fund Balances — As of the close of fiscal year 2002, the City’s governmental funds
reported a combined ending fund balance of $641.2 million, an increase of $135.9 million from the prior year. Of
this total amount, $329.2 million represents the “unreserved and undesignated fund balances” with $345.8
miliion of this amount being in the general fund.

Governmental Funds

General Fund — Fund Balance — The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. The City’s General
Fund —~ Fund Balance Policy is to maintain a GAAP undesignated fund balance in the general fund that is 10%,
or higher, of GAPP general fund operating expenditures for the fiscal year. The GAAP undesignated fund
balance at the end of fiscat year 2002 was $345.8 million, which represents approximately 20% of GAAP general
fund operating expenditures.

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financial requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s financial position at the end
of the fiscal year.

However, because the City is required to follow the statutory basis of accounting rtather than GAAP for
determining the amount of undesignated fund balance that can be appropriated, it is the statutory (not the GAAP)
fund balance that is used to calculated “free cash”. Free cash is the amount of statutory fund balance in the
general fund, as certified by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Department of Revenue, that is available for
appropriation and is generated when actual revenues on a cash basis exceeded budgeted amounts and
encumbrances are less than appropriations or both..

The City of Boston has established this policy to ensure that the City maintains adequate levels of fund balance
to mitigate current and future risks (i.e. revenue shortfalls and unanticipated expenditures). The policy states that
the City shall maintain 28 GAAP undesignated fund balance in the general fund that is 10% or higher than the
current fiscal year’s (GAAP general fund operating expenditures; and that the City shall only consider the
certification of free cash (as defined by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts” Department of Revenue) in years
where the appropriation of free cash shall not cause the fiscal year’s GAAP undesignated fund balance to go
below 10% of the fiscal year's GAAP general fund expenditures; and the City shall only consider the
appropriation of certified free cash to offset: (1) certain fixed costs such as pension contributions and related post

See independent auditor’s report.
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retirement health benefits; and/or (2) to fund extraordinary and non-recurring events as determined and certified
by the City Auditor.

The general fund budgetary highlights include ending fiscal year 2002 with a $5.2 million dottar surplus. This
represents the City’s 17" consecutive year with a balanced budget. Changes to the original budget resulted in a
$5.5 million dollar increase in the overall budget. While $4.3 million was appropriated to various departments
throughout the year to cover the costs of collective bargaining agreements, $1.2 million was appropriated in
Public Safety and the Boston Public Health Commission to support the Youth Fund Summer jobs Program and
to provide additional homeless beds to accommodate the winter overflow in area shelers.

These supplemental appropriations were funded from available sources revenue. During the year, revenues
exceeded budgetary estimates, thus eliminating the need to draw on existing fund balance.

Special Revenue — Fund Balance — The special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The fiscal year 2002 special revenue
fund balance is reported at $120.7 million, a $7.5 million increase over fiscal year 2001.

Capital Projects Fund — Fund Balance - The capital projects fund accounts for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds. The fiscal year 2002 capital projects fund fund balance is $74.7 million. The 566 9 million increase over
fiscal year 2001 is attributable to the timng of borrowing.

Other Governmental Funds — Fund Balance — Other governmental funds account for assets held by the City ina
trustee capacity or as an agent. The fiscal year 2002 other govermmental funds balance is $43.8 million.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of mformation found in the government-wide financial
staternents, but in more detail.

The City’s proprietary funds net assets for fiscal year 2002 are a negative $39.5 million. As stated in the
discussion on the government-wide financial statements, the negative balance in the proprietary funds is a result
of the Convention Center special obligation bonds and Hospital revenue bonds outstanding at year-end.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2002, included $1.73 billion
of cost and accumulated depreciation of $948.1 million, leaving a net book value of $781.9 million. This
investment in capital assets inciudes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure and construction in
progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and have value only to the City, such as
roads, bridges, and streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items.

See independent auditor’s report.
il {Continued)



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was about 15.8% in terms
of net book value. However, actual expenditures to purchase or construct capital assets were $144.7 million for
the year. Most of this amount was used to construct or reconstruct roads and bridges. Depreciation charges for’
the year totaled $37.8 million. Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 8 of the
notes to the basic financial statements.

Long-term Debt

Debt Administration - The authority of the City to incur debt is governed by federal and state laws that restrict
the amounts and purposes for which a municipality can incur debt.

Quustanding Debt - The City's total governmental long-term debt obligations increased by $106.9 million, or
(9.8%) during the current fiscal year. The key factor in this increase was the issuance of 2002 Series A
$100.0 million General Obligation Bonds and $62.0 million of Bond Anticipation Notes. General obligation
bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City, including the City’s power to levy additional taxes to
ensure repayment of the debt. Accordingly, all general obligation debt currently outstanding was approved by a
vote of the City Council. '

The City’s governmental long-term bonds and notes increased by $83.4 milfion during the current fiscal year,
due to the issuance of the 2002 Series A $100.0 million General Obligation Bonds and $_62.0 million of Bond
Anticipation Notes (BAN’s). At June 30, 2002, other governmental long-term obligations totaled $242.5 million.

The long-term debt to be paid by the business type activities decreased $45.4 million due to the issuance of
$116.9 million of Special Obligation Bonds, the proceeds of which were used to repay a portion of outstanding
BAN with a face amount of $157.8 million. '

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt obligations can be found in Note 10 of the notes to the basic
financial statements.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Boston's finances for all of City of
Boston’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors. This financial report seeks to demonstrate
the City’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to: City of Boston, Auditing Department,
Boston City Hall, Room M4, Boston, MA 0220].

- See independent auditor’s report.



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2002

{In thousands)

Primary government

Governmental  Business-type Component
Assets activities activities Total units
Cash and imvestments hS 681,101 702 681,803 134,065
Cash and investments held by trustees 63,542 64,777 128,319 10,597
Receivables, net:
Property taxes 10,980 —- 10,980 e
Intergovernmental 134,516 2,600 137,116 —
Other 15,500 — 15,500 92,436
Other assets 2,102 1,555 3,657 164,633
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 415762 ~— 415,762 25,006
Depreciable, net 366,180 — 366,180 27,006
Due from other funds —_ -— — 7,069
Due from components units 19.25G 129,103 148,353 —
Due from primary government —-— — — 108
Total assets 1,708,933 198,737 1,907,670 460,920
Liabilities -
Warrants and accounts payable 66,171 268 66,440 97,436
Accrued labilities - current:
Compensated absences 54,655 — 54,655 —
Judgment and claims 17,051 o e 17,051 —
Other 151,201 — 151,201 3,021
Current portion of long-term debt 121,395 6,835 128,230 859
Due to other funds — — —_— 14,059
Due to component unit 108 — 108 —
Thue to primary government — — — 148,353
Deferred revenue 26,730 — 26,730 46,392
Noncurrent labilities:
Bonds, notes and leases 837593 251,150 1,088,743 21,628
Bond anticipation note payable 25,000 — 25,000 —
Other 152,299 — 152,299 10,770
Total liabilities 1,452,203 258,254 1,710,457 342,518
Net Assets
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt (92,711} -— (92,711) 29,339
Restricted for:
Capital projects 74,654 — 74,654 —
Unspent bond proceeds 27.861 — 27.8al —
Other purposes 164,484 — 164,484 56,969
Unrestricted 82,442 (59,517 22,925 32,094
Total net assets % 256,730 (59,517 197,213 118,402

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2002

{In thousunds)

Program revenues

Met (expense) revenue and
changes in net assets

Operating Capital “Primary government :
Charges for grants and grants anc “Governmental — Business-iype Compuonent
Functions/Programs Expenses services coniributions contributions activities activities Total units
Primury goverimen:
Governmenial activities:
Genera) governiment £4,350 15,058 10,208 —— (59,0843 — {59.084) -—
Humun services 1,730 450 10,217 -— {863} —_ {863}
Public safety 429,216 93,498 20,458 — (309.260) — {309.260) -
Public works 82,80 3,412 6,699 13,818 (58,962} — (58,962) —
Property and development 112,787 1576 73,588 — {37,623} — {37,625 —
Parks und recreation 18,504 53 221 — (18,230 — {18,230} —
Libtary 38112 101 5029 — (32,982) —_ (32.982) —
Schools 768,428 17,278 310,257 17,128 (423,765) — (423,765) b
Public health programs 64,537 — — — (64,537) — (64,537) —
County 109,340 31 95912 — (£3,39T) — (13,397) —
Judgments und cluims 2,724 — — — (2,724) —— {2,724} —
Retirement costs 82,034 2,197 e — {79.337) — (79.837) —
Other employee benefig 45,059 — — — (10L,059) —_ (101,059 —_
State and district assessments 67,769 —_ —_ — (67,769) — (67,709 —
Tnterest on long-tern debt 38,514 —_ — —_ (38.514) -— {38,514) —
Totat governmental actlivities 2,011,995 130,854 541,589 34,946 (1,308,606) — (1,308,606) —
Business-type activities:
Conventiom Cenler i9,035 — 38,6905 — —— 19,660 19,660 —
Hospial bonds 8,232 — — — — (8,232 (8,232) —
Totul business-lype uctivities 27,267 — 38,693 —_ - 11,428 11,428 —
Total primary govermment 2,039,262 130,854 580,284 30,946 (1,308,606) 11,428 (1,297,178) —
Component units:
Pnblic Heahh Cowmission 126,755 — 128,758 — —— — — 2,003
Boston Redevelopment Authority 20,234 — — — — — — (26,234)
Trustces of the Boston Putlic Library 13,956 — [1,56% — — —_— — (2,387)
Economic Development 33,213 9% 20,471 — — — — (12,644)
Total component units 200,158 98 160,798 — —_ — — (39,262}
General revenues:
Tuxes:
Propenty taxes, levied for general purposes 967,762 —_ 967,762 —
Excises 109,503 3,079 114,582 —_
Payments in lieu of taxes 36,332 — 36,332 —
Grants and conltibulions not restricted 272,150 — 272,150 —
Investment income 23,097 8.394 31,691 1199
Miscelfaneous 33,568 7.3G3 46,871 36,853
Special ilem - gain on sate of capital usscls 13,300 — 13,300
Totul generul revenues and trunsfers 1,455,712 20,976 1,476,688 38,052
Change in net assels 147,106 32,404 179,510 (1,.210)
Net assets - heginning 109,624 (91,9211 17,703 119612
Met assets - ending 256,730 (59,517) 197,213 118,402

Sece accompunying noles 10 basic financial statements.




. Assets
Cash and investrments
Cash and investments held by trustees
Receivabies, net:
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Departmental and other

Totul receivables
Due from component units

Total assels

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Warrants and aceounts payahle

Accrued liabilities:
Tax abatements
Judgments and claims
Compensated absences -
Other

Deferred revenue

Pue to pther funds

Due to cornponent units

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances {deficin):

Reserved for:
Eacumbrances
Fulure appropriations

Unreserved: .
Designated for subsequent years expenditures
Undesignated .
Undesignated, reported in permananl fuads

Total fund batance
Total liabilities and fund balances

See accompanying noles to basic financial statements.

CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2002

(In thousands)

Other Total
Special Capital govermtiental governmental
General revenie projects funds funds
$ 482,419 106,093 80.537 -— 669,049
16,008 — 3,745 43,789 63,542
37,555 _ - — 37,555
78.215 56,301 — - 134,516
11,616 195 — — 11,811
127,386 56,496 — e 183,882
19,250 — — — 19,250
$ 645,063 162,589 84,282 43,789 935,723
$ 41,940 14,597 9,593 16 66,146
25,022 — —- — 25.022
10,000 — —_ — 10,000
20,000 — — - 20.000
86,499 27281 — — 113,780
58,237 — — 58,237
727 — — — 727
108 — — — 108
421 — 35 — 456
242,954 41,878 9,628 16 204,476
20,262 44,111 112,020 — 176,393
—_ — 55,874 — 55,874
36,000 — e —_ 36.000
345,847 76,600 (93,240) - 329,207
— — — 43,773 43,773
402,109 120,711 74,054 43,773 641,247
g 645,063 162,584 84,282 43,789 035,723




CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002
{In thousands}

Totaj fund balance - Governmental Funds b 641,247

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. These
assets consist of:

Land 14,466
Land improvements 15,507
Buildings and improvements 939,198
Equipment 117,191
Infrastructure ' 242,383
Construction in progress 401,296
Less: accumulated depreciation {948,099}
781,942
Adjust deferred revenues to record tax revenues on an accrual basis 8.470

Internal service funds are included in the government wide
staterents . 7,460

Bond issuance costs are capitalized in the government wide
statements 496

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

General obligation bonds and notes (956,744)
Capital leases (26,036)
Bond issue premium (1.208)
Accrued interest on bonds (12,399)
Compensated absences (149,177)
Landfill (14,871)
Judgments and claims (22,450)

(1,182,885)

Net assets of governmental activities $ 256,730

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Revenues:

Real and personal property taxes &

Excises

Paymenis in lien of 1axes
Fines

Investment income
Licenses and permits
Departmental and other
Intergovertunental

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Hutnan services
Public safety
Public works
Property and development
Parks and recreation
Library
Schools
Public Health Programs
County
Judgments and clains
Retirement costs
Other employee benefits
State and district assessments

Capital outlays

Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing scurces (uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt and capital leases
Orperating transfers ia
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Special item:
Proceeds fram sale of capital assels

Net change in fund balances
Fund baiance - beginning, restated {note 3)

Fund balance - ending b

See accompanying notes to basic financial staternents.

Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2002
{In thousands)

Other Total
Special Capital governmental governmental
General revenue projects funds funds

090,848 — — — 990,848
111,114 — -— — 111,114
36,332 — — — 36,332
60,601 44 - — 60,645
14,596 159 — 113 14,868
33,325 252 — — 33,577
62,200 10,478 8,649 1616 82,943
492,299 334,961 13,609 — 840,869
1,801,315 345 804 22,258 1,729 2,171,196
77,019 7,131 — 6,284 90,434
6,434 5,290 -— — 11,724
403,844 21,888 -— — 427,732
74,651 407 —_— — 75,058
48,774 63,081 — — 111,855
16,230 396 — — 16,626
28,695 3,261 — — 33,956
627,653 130,162 — — 757,815
64,537 — —_— — 64,537
4,537 104,754 —- — 109,291
2,724 —_ —_— — 2,724
32,034 — — — 82,034
107,701 — — — 107,701
67,769 — — — 67,769
5,177 —_ 139,593 — 144,77¢
115,366 3894 . — — 119,260
1,735,145 342,264 139,593 6.284 2,223,286

66,170 3,630 {117,335) (4,535) (52,090)
— 3,839 170,915 — 174,754
1,778 — — — 1,778

—_ — — (1,778) (1.778)
1,778 3,839 170913 {1,778 174,754
— — 13,300 — 13,300
67,948 7,469 66,880 (6,333 135,964
334,161 113242 7,774 50,106 505,283
402.109 120,711 74,654 43,773 641,247




CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2002

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 135,964

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Capital outlay

(5144,770) exceeded depreciation expense ($37,773). 106,997
Tax revenues in the statement of activities that are not
reported as revenues in the governmental funds. (24,697)

Proceeds of long-term debt ($174,754) increase long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets, but are included in
the operating statement of the governmental funds.
Repayment of bond principal ($93,186) is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but reduces long-term Habilities
in the statement of net assets. This is the amount by which
proceeds exceeded repayments. {81,568)

Bond premiums ($1,208) increase the long-term Liabilities
in the statement of net assets, but are included in the
operating staternent of the governmental funds. Bond
issuance costs ($496) are expenditures in the governmental
funds, but are deferred assets in the statement of net
assets, This is the amount by which premiums exceeded
issuance costs. (712)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
This amount represents the decrease in compensated
‘absences ($2,910) and landfill liabilities (${,662) offset by an

increase in interest payable ($602). 3,970

Net income from the internal service fund which is presented
in the statement of activities, but not in the governmental funds. 7.152
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 147,106

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
General Fund - Budget and Actual

Year ended June 30, 2002
(with comparative actual amounts for 2001)

{In thousands)
2002 Variance :
Original Final favorable 2001
bndget budget Actual {unfavorable) Actuatl
Revenues and other avaifable funds:
Real and personal property
taxes, net 3 925,937 925,937 926,336 399 874,013
Excises 105,720 107,620 112,304 4,684 105,473
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 550,452 350,452 541,456 (8,996) 525,169
Departmental and other revenue 48,331 48331 62,193 13,862 53,100
Fines 58,271 59,010 60,659 1,649 59,769
Payments in lieu of taxes 26,281 29.087 36,332 7,245 39,994
Investment income 15,550 15,550 14,801 (749) 26,084
Licenses and permits 23,815 23,815 29651 5,836 37,824
Other available funds 13,654 13,654 4,568 (9,086) . 8,353
Totat revenues and other
available funds 1,768,011 1,773,456 1,788,300 14,844 1,729,781
" Expenditures: ' _
General government 66,532 66,053 70,702 ' (4,649) 73,696
Human services 5,939 6,416 6,398 18 5,508
Public safety 400,827 402,762 405,156 (2,388 381,275
Public works 72,198 74,984 74,833 151 78,044
Property and development 39,202 40,636 41,630 (994) 53,523
Parks and recreation 15,852 16,174 16,071 103 15,262
Library 28,702 28,813 28,813 —_ 20981
Schools 637,446 639,729 639,710 19 611,925
Boston Public Health Commission 62,913 64,005 64,003 — 62,141
County 4,537 4,537 4,537 — 6,030
Judgments and claims 4,100 4,160 5,000 900y 2,008
Other employee benefits 108.202 106,686 107,473 (787) 95,132
Retirement costs 135,710 135,710 135,710 —_ 133,775
State and district assessments 67,511 67,511 67,769 {258) 66,788
Debt requirements 118,340 115,340 115,332 8 105,978
Total expenditures 1,768,011 1,773,456 1,783,133 (9,677 1,721,156
Excess of revenuas and other
available funds over ’ ‘
expenditires 3 — — 5,167 5,167 8,625

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statemnent of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2002
{In thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments held by trustees
Receivables, net
Due from component units
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Other assets

Total current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Special obligation bonds
Reven_ue bonds

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

$

Enterprise funds

Hospital

Convention revenue Internal

center bonds Total service
702 — 702 12,052
39,431 25,346 64,777 —
— — — 151
— 129,103 129,103 —
—_— — — 727
2,600 — 2,600 —
1,555 — 1,555 1,606
44,288 154,449 198,737 14,536
44,288 154,449 198,737 14,536
269 — 269 25
— — — 7,051
2,100 4,735 6,835 —
2,369 4,735 7,104 7.076
114,790 — 114,790 —
— 136,360 136,360 —
114,790 136,360 251,150 —
117,159 141,095 258,254 7.076
(72,87 13,354 (59517 7,460
(72,871) 13,354 (59,517 7.460

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Revennes, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2002
{In thousands)

Enterprise funds

Hospital

Convention revenue Internpal
center bonds Total service

Operating revenues:
Contributions $ — — - 71,409
Excise taxes ~ pledged for debt service 5,079 —_ 5,079 —
Departmental and other — pledged for debt service 6,270 1,033 7,303 510
Total operating revenues 11,349 1,033 12,382 71,919

Operating expenses:
Contributions to State 19,035 — 19,035 —
Health benefits — - _— 64,767
Total operating expenses 19,035 — 19,035 64,767
Operating {loss) income {7.686) 1,033 (6,653) 7,152

Nonoperating revenue {expense):

Intergovernmental - state grants 38,695 - 38,695 —
Investment earnings - pledged for debt service — 3379 §.579 —
Investment earnings - other 15 — 15 —
Interest expense ' — (8,232} (8,231 —
Total nonoperating revenue {expense) 38,710 347 39,057 —
Change in net assets 31,024 1,380 32,404 7,152
Total net assets - beginning {103,895} 11,974 (91,921 308
Total net assets - ending $  (72,871) 13,354 (59,517 7,460

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund Type
Year ended June 30, 2062

{In thousands)

Enterprise fund
Hospital
Convention =~ Tevenue Internal
center bonds Total service
Cash flows from operations:
Cash received frons customers % — — — 71,307
Other cash received 7,463 5,024 12,487 510
Cash paid to vendors —- - — (67,479)
Cash paid to state (19,035) — {19,035) ——
Net cash (provided) used in
operations (11,57 5,024 {0.54R) 4,338
Cash flows from noncapital financing actvities: _
Grants received from state 38,693 — 38,695 —
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities 38,695 — 38,695 —
Cash flows from capiial and related financing
activities:
Interest paid on debt — {8,232) (8,232 e =
Proceeds of long-term debt 116,890 —_ 116,890 -
Repayment of long-term debt - (157,800 (4,485) (162,285) -
Net cash used by capital and .
related financing aciivities (40,910) (12,717 (53,627) ——
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income : 15 B.579 8,594 —
Net cash provided by
investing activities 15 8,579 8,594 m
(Decrease) increase in cash and _
cash equivalents (13,772 886 (12,886) - 4,338
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 53,905 24,460 78,365 7714
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year % 40,133 25,346 65,479 12.052
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund Type (Continued)

Year ended June 3Q, 2002

{In thousands)

Enterprise fund
Hospital
Convention revenue Internal
center bonds Total service
Reconciliation of operating income to cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) b (7.686) 1,033 {6,653) 7,152
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and ljabilities:
Accounts receivable — — — (102}
Intergovernmental receivables (2,600} — {2,600} 170
Other assets (1,535} (1,553) -
Due (to) from other funds — 3,991 3,991 64
Accounts payable 269 269 3
Other accrued liabilities — — — (2.949)
Net cash (used) provided by
operating activities $ (11,572) 5,024 {6,548) 4.338

See accorﬂpanying notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2002

(In thousands)
Employee Private
retirement purpose Agency
Assets plans trusts funds
Cash and cash equivalents 444 71,394 4,160
Receivables:
Interest and dividends 6,200 — —
Other 64,880 2,245 —
Total receivables 71,686 2,245 —
Due from primary government 64,871 — —
Investments, at fair value:
Money market 1,104 405 — —
MMDT 20,872 — —
Short-term investments 110,797 — —
Domestic equity securities 800,533 — —
Domestic debt securities 294,337 - —
International equity 342,950 — —
International debt 144,352 — —
Real estate 250,187 — —
Venture capital funds 53,168 — —
Total investments 3,121,621 — —
Other assets — 30 e
Total assets 3,258,622 73,669 4,160
Liabilities
Accounts payable 10,121 714 —
Refunds payable and other 267,554 — 4,160
Total Habilities 277,675 714 4,160
Net Assets
Held in trust for pension benefits and
other purposes 2,980,947 72,955

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Changes in Fiductary Net Assets -
Fiduciary Funds

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In thousands)

Additions:
Contributions:
Employers
Emplovees
Donations

Total contributions

Investment earnings:
Net depreciation in the fair value of investments
Interest and dividends

Less investment expenses
Net investment (losses) earnings
Intergovernmental
Total additions

Deductions:
Benefits
Reimbursement to other systems
Refunds of contributions
Borrower rebates and fees
Administrative expenses

Total deductions
Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Employee Private
retirement purpose
plans trusts
150,061 —
89,844 —
— 13,725
239,905 13,725
(252,989 (1,864)
70,852 4239
(8,120 —
(190,257) 2,375
24,127 —
73,775 16,100
240,676 —
7,299 —
12,936 —
8,445 —
2,135 15,241
271,491 15,241
(197,716) 859
3,178,663 72,096
2,980,947 72,955




(1)

CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statemenis
June 30, 2002

The Financial Reporting Entity

"The accounting policies followed in preparing the accompanying basic financial statements are as follows:

{a)

(b)

(c)

Primary Government

The City of Boston (the City), incorporated as a town in 1630 and as a city in 1822, now exists under
Chapter 486 of the Act of 1909 and Chapter 452 of the Acts of 1948 of the Commonweaith of
Massachusetts (the Commonwealth) which, as amended, constitute the City’s Charter. The Mayor is
elected to a four-year term and serves as chief executive officer of the City. The Mayor has general
supervision of and control over the City’s boards, commissions, officers and departments including
all operations of Suffolk County, except county courts. The legislative body of the City is the City
Council, which consists of thirteen elected members serving two-year terms. The Mayor and City
Council serve as the County Commissioners of Suffolk County.

The accompanying basic financial statements present the City of Boston which includes Suffolk
County and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in the City’s
reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the
City.

Blended Component Unit Disclosure

The following component unit has been presented as a blended component unit (included in the
primary govermnment) because the component unit provides services almost exclusively to the
primary govermment:

State-Boston Retirement System (SBRS) — The SBRS is a defined benefit contributory
retirement system created under state statute. It is administered by a Retirement Board
comprised of five members; the City Auditor, who serves ex officio; two individuals elected
by participants in the system; a fourth member appointed by the Mayor and a fifth member
chosen by the other members. The SBRS provides pension benefits to retired City employees.

A complete set of financial statements for SBRS for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2081 can be
obtained through the City Auditor’s office, Room M-4, City Hall Plaza, Boston, Massachusetts
02201.

Discretely Presented Component Units Disclosure

These component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the City but are included because the City is financially accountable for and is able to impose
its will on the organizations. Unless otherwise indicated, the notes to the basic financial statements
pertain only to the primary government because certain disclosures of the component units are not
significant relative 1o the total component units and to the primary government. A description of the
component units, criteria for inclusion and their relationship with the City are as follows:

Boston Redevélopment Authority (BRA) — The BRA is a public body politic and corporate
constituting the City’s redevelopment authority and exercising the powers of a planning board
for the City. The BRA is governed by a five-member board, four of whom are appointed by
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(2)

CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

the Mayor. Its purpose is to provide planning support for major construction and
redevelopment activity in the City.

Economic Development and Industrial Corporation of Boston (EDIC) — The EDIC is a
body politic and corporate and an instrumentality of the Commonwealth. 1t is governed by the
same persons appointed as members of the BRA board. The EDIC has various powers to assist
industrial development projects in the City and together with the BRA assists the City with its
economic development function.

Boston Public Health Commission (PHC) - The PHC is a body politic and corporate and
public instrumentality of the Commonwealth, established by Chapter 147 of the Acts of 1995.
PHC is governed by a seven-member board, six of whom are appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council, and one of whom is the chief executive officer of the Boston
Medical Center (BMC). The PHC is respounsible for the implementation of public health
programs in the City.

Trustees of the Public Library of the City of Boston (TPL) - The TPL is a nonprofit

organization qualified as a tax-exempt entity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Intermal Revenue

Code. Trustees of TPL. are appointed by the Mayor. The TPL was established to benefit the
_public library system of the City.

The financial statements of the discretely presented component units are included for their respective
fiscal year-ends, which is on June 30, 2002,

Complete financial statements of these discretely presented component units can be obtained through
the City Auditor’s office, Room M-4, City Hall Plaza, Boston, Massachusetts, 02201. In addition,
condensed financial statements for the discretely presented component units are included in note 7.

(d) Related Organizations

The Mayor is also responsible for appointing members of the govemning bodies of the Boston
Housing Authority, Boston Industrial Development Finance Authority and Boston Water and Sewer
Commission; however, the City’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond
making these appointments.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Boston, Massachusetts, conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement 34, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments,
which established new financial reporting requirements for state and local governments throughout the
United States. The statement requires new information and restructures much of the information that the
City has presented in the past. Comparability with reports issued in prior years is affected. Other GASB
Statements are required to be implemented in conjunction with GASB Statement 34. Therefore, the City
has implemented the following GASB Statements in the cumrent fiscal year: Statement 36 — Recipient
Reporting for Certuin Shared Nonexchange Revenues, Statement 37 — Basic Financial Statements — and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, and Statement 38 —
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. The following is a summary of the more significant policies
- followed by the City:

(a)

(b)

Governmenit-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity bas been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary govermment is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment, Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columps in the fund financial staternents.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1} charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2} operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurements focus and the modified acerval basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
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as they are “susceptible to accrual” {i.e., both measurable and available.) Revenues not considered to
be available are recorded as deferred revenue.

The City applies the susceptible to accrual criteria to property taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, there are essentially
two types of revenues. In one, resources must be expended on the specific purpose or project before
any amounts will be reimbursed to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the
amount of expenditures incurred. In the other, resources are virtually unrestricted and are usually
revocable by the grantor only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These
resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
are met. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which taxes have been levied,
provided they are collected within 60 days after year-end.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures,
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and judgments and claims, are recorded
.. only when payment is mature and due.

Proprietary Fund, Fiduciary Fund, and Component Unit Financial Statements

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the -
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict gnidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the oprion of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.
The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses {rom nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from the collection of revenue pledged to repay debt.
The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are lease receipts and excise taxes.
The principal operating revenues of the City’s internal service funds are charges to other funds for
health insurance. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the
interest, administrative expenses, and vendor payments. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental funds -- The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

The capital activities fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.
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Proprietary funds — The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Convention Center fund accounts for the City activities related to the financing for the
construction of a new state-owned convention center.

The Hospiraf. Revenue Bond Fund accounts for the activities related to the Boston City
Hospital Bonds.

Fiduciaﬁ funds ~ Additionally, the City reports the following fiduciary fund types:

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for the
benefit of individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

The pension trust fund accounts principally for the activities of the State-Boston Employees
Retirement System, a blended component unit, which accumulates resources for pension
benefit payments to retired City employees.

The agency funds are used to repc;ﬁ funds held by the City is a purely custodial capacity.

The City also uses an internal service fund to account for its self-insured health costs. Although the
fund is presented in a separate columm in the accompanying financial statements, it is not considered
a major fund.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Cash Equivalenis

For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows, investments with original maturities of three
months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

Basis of Investment Valuation

Investients are presented in the accompanying basic financial statements at fair value. Where
applicable, fair values are based on quotations from national securities exchanges, except for certain
investments of the State-Boston Retirement System which are described in notes 5 and 11. Further,
income from investments is recognized in the same fund as the refated investments.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds™ (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds™ (i.e., the noncurrent portiont of interfund loans).
All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due toffrom other funds.” Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”
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Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

Uncollectible Tax and Other Receivables

All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Amounts considered to be
uncoliectible are based on the type and age of the related receivable.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which inclnde property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $25.000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 30
Building improvements 20
Public domain infrastructure 30
System infrastructure 30
Vehicles 3
Office equipment 3
Computer equipment 3

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement, termination or
death, certain employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave (subject to certain
lirnitations) at their then current rates of pay. The portion of the lability related to unused sick and
vacation time that has matured or is due as of June 30, 2002 is recorded in the governmental fund
financial statements. The portion expected to be paid within one year is recorded in the government-
wide financial statements. The total amount to be paid in future years is presented in the government-
wide statement of net assets. The liability for vacation leave is based on the amount earned but not
used; for sick leave, it is based on the amount accumulated at the balance sheet date (vesting
method). The liability for both amounts is calculated based on the pay or salary rates in effect at the
balance sheet date.
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Long-Térm Obligations and Related Costs

Premiums, discounts and issue costs ~ In the government-wide financial statements, and
proprictary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issnance
costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Arbitrage Rebate — Rebatable arbitrage earnings are calculated for the City by third parties and
accounted for as a liability and a reduction of investment income in the general fund. At June 30,

2002, an accumulated arbitrage rebate liability of $1.9 million was recorded in the general fund.

Fund Eqguity

In the fund financial statements, governmenta! funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject
to change.

Tax Abatement Refunds

All estimated tax abatement refunds have been recorded as a liability in the general fund.

Landfill Postclosure Care Costs

State and federal regulations require the City to place a final cover on its Gardner Street landfill site
when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and menitoring functions at the
site for 30 years after closure. At June 30, 2002, 100% of the Gardner Street landfill site had been
used and had not accepted solid waste for several years. The City has completed the covering of this
site in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The liabjlity for postclosure care i$ estimated based on current cost, which is the amount that would
be paid if all equipment, facilities and services included in the estimate were acquired during the
current period. Such costs are recognized as expenditures in the general fund to the extent that they
are due or matured and are expected (0 be paid with expendable available financial resources. The
total liability is reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets. Expenditures related to
the Gardner Street landfill site closure and postclosure care in fiscal 2002 were approximately
$1.7 million. ‘ :
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{m} Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires mapagement to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revepues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits couid differ from those estimates.

Implementaiion of New Accounting Standards

As a result of implementing GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain
Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements, certain fund liabilities that
existed at June 30, 2001 were reduced to reflect only the portion of the liability that was “due”. The impact
of this change on the general fund equity was to reduce labilities and increase fund equity at July 1, 2001
by $67.7 million.

GASB No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis ~ for State and
Local Governments redefined ‘enterprise funds’ resulting in the establishment of two enterprise funds — the
Convention Center fund and the Hospital Bond fund. Both funds were established to account for activities
related to bonds for which revenue streams have been pledged as security repayment. The activities of the
funds were transferred to the enterprise funds effective July 1, 2001, The impact is as follows:

Capital Hospital Convention
_ Projects Bond Center

Balance as previously reported $ 25,086 — —

Transfer to Convention Center (1,032) —_ 1,032

Transfer to Hospital Bond fund (16,280) 16,280 —
Recognition of bonds payable — (145,580) (157.,800)

Recognition of lease receivable — 156,832 —

Recognition of other assets/liabilities — (15,558) 52,873
Balance as restated 3 7,774 11,974 (103,895)

Budgetary Data

The general fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally adopted. The budgets for all departments
included in the general fund of the City, except the School Department, are prepared under the direction of
the Mayor and City Council. The School Department budget is prepared under the direction of the School
Committee.

Original and supplemental appropriations are submitted by the Mayor, approved by the City Council and
lapse at year-end unless encumbered. The legal level of control aover appropriations is at the department
level. Amendments to the original budget must be approved by the City Council, except for a reallocation
of appropriations of up to $3 million which the Mayor may approve. Further, the City Auditor, with the
approval of the Mayor, may make transfers from any appropriation to any other appropriation for purposes
of eliminating deficits before closing the books for the fiscal year. After the close of the fiscal year, the

33 {Continued)



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

City Auditor may, with the approval of the Mayor, apply any income, taxes and funds not disposed of and
-make transfers from any appropriation to any other appropriation for the purpose of closing the accounts
for the fiscal year. Supplemental appropriations, other than the aforementioned transfers, were
approximately $5.4 million for the year.

The City must establish its property tax rate each year so that the resulting property tax levy will comply
with the limits required by Proposition 2-1/2 (note 6). The tax levy must equal the sum of (a) the aggregate
of all annual appropriations for expenditures; plus (b) the reserve accounts described in the following
paragraph; plus (c) provision for the prior fiscal years® deficits, if any; less (d) the aggregate of all
nonproperty tax revenues projected to be received by the City, including available funds, in amounts
certified or approved by the Commonwealth for tax rate purposes.

In accordance with the 1986 amendments to the Funding Loan Act of 1982, the City has established two
reserve funds. The first is a budget reserve fund which is required to be funded in stages to a final level of
2-1/2% of the prior year's overall departmental appropriations, except the School Department, by the
beginning of fiscal 1990. It is available to be applied to extraordinary and unforeseen expenditures. The
second is a separate reserve fund of 1% to 2-1/2% of the current year appropriation of the School
Department to be applied to overexpenditures in that department.

The City’s general fund budget is prepared on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP). The “actual” results column in the statement of revenues and
expenditures - budgetary basis - general fund is presented on a “budgetary basis™ to provide a meaningful
comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget and GAAP basis,
where applicable, are that:

(a) Revenues are recorded when cash is received except for real estate and personal property taxes are
recorded as revenue when levied (budget), as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

(b) Encumbrances and continuing appropriations which are recorded as the eguivalent of expenditures
(budget), as opposed to a reservation of fund balance (GAAP).

(c) Certain activities and transactions are presented in separate funds (GAAP), rather than as
components of the general fund (budget).

(d) Amounts raised for the prior years’ deficits and available funds from prior years’ surpluses are
recorded as revenue items (budget), but have no effect on GAAP revenues.

In addition, there are certain differences in classifications between revenues, expenditures and transfers.
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The following reconciliation summarizes the differences between budgetary and GAAP basis accounting
-principles for the year ended June 30, 2002:

Excess of
Other revenue
financing and other
sources financing
. Revenue Expenditures (uses}, net sources
As reported on a budgetary basis $ 1,788,300 1,783,133 — 5,167
Adjustments:
Revenues to modified accrual basis 66,740 — _ 66,740
Expenditures, encurmbrances and accruals,
net — 3,959 — (3,959
Reclassifications:
Parking meter revenue and expenditures
to a special revenue fund (2,790} {2,790) — —
Debt service expenditures _ —= — — —
State-funded teachers” retirement costs (49,157 (49,137 — e
Trust fund revenue (1,778) — 1,778 —

. As reported on a GAAP basis $ 1,801,315 1,735,143 . 1,778 67,948

Deposits and Investments

State and Jocal statutes place certain limitattons on the nature of deposits and investments available to the
City. Deposits, including demand deposits, money markets and certificates of deposit in any one financial
institution, may not exceed certain levels unless collateralized by the financial institution involved.
Investments may be made in unconditionally guaranteed U.S. Government obligations having maturities of
a year or less from the date of purchase, or through repurchase agreements with maturities of no greater
than 90 days in which the underlying securities consist of such obligations. Other allowable mvestments
include authorized bonds of all states, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper rated within the three
highest classifications established by rating agencies, and units in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository
Trust (MMDT}. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts oversees the financial management
of the MMDT, a local investment pool for cities, towns and other state and other locat agencies within the
Commonwealth. The City’s fair value of its investment in the MMDT represents their value of the pool’s
shares.

The City's pension and certain other trust funds have additional investment powers, most notably the
ability to invest in common stocks, corporate bonds and other specified investments.

(a) Deposits

The City categonzed deposits according to the level of risk assumed. Category | includes deposits
which are fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or its agent in the entity’s
name. Category 2 includes deposits that are collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agent in the entity’s name. Category 3 includes those
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deposits that are not collateralized. The City’s deposits at June 30, 2002 are as follows (in
thousands):

Total
Category bank Carrying
1 2 3 balance amount
Total cash deposits 3 6,464 — g1,115 97.579 98,761

Investments

The City and SBRS categorize investments according to the level of risk assumed. Category 1
includes investments that are insured, registered or held by the entity or its agent in the entity’s
name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent in the entity’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the entity’s name.
MMDT, other mutual funds, pooled funds, venture capital funds and real estate investments are not
categorized. The City’s investments are as follows (in thousands):

Primary government Category
June 30, 2002 1 2 3 Fair value
Categorized:
U.S. Government obligations  § — 9,304 — 9,304
Debt securities — 16,280 _ 16,280
Equity securities — 9,858 — 9,858
$ — 35,442 —
Not categorized:
Repurchase agreements 212,800
MMDT 475,412
Mutual funds 63,705
$ 787359
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Category
SBRS — December 31, 2001 1 2 3 Fair value
Categorized:
Short-term investments $ 110,797 — — 110,797
Domestic equity securities 757,482 — — 757,482
Domestic debt securities 220,213 —_ — 220,213
International equity 286,949 — —_ 286,949
International debt 144,079 — —- 144,079
$ 1,519,520 — —_
Not categorized:
Investments held by broker-
dealer under securities
loans 347,893
MMDT 20,872
Pooled funds 029,981
Real estate 250,187
Venture capital funds 53,168

$ 3121621

The composition of the City’s bank deposits and investments fluctuates depending primarily on the
timing of real estate tax receipts, proceeds from borrowings, collection of state and federal aid and
capital outlays throughout the year.

Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each January 1. By law, all taxable
property must be assessed at 100% of fair cash value. Also by law, property taxes must be levied at least
30 days prior to their due date. Once levied, these taxes are recorded as receivables, net of estimated
uncollectible balances. Property tax revenuoes have been recorded using the modified accrual basis of
accounting, described in note 2.

The City bills and collects its property taxes on a quarterly basis following the January { assessment. The
due dates for those quarterly tax billings are August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1. Property taxes
that remain unpaid after the respective due dates are subject to penalties and interest charges.

Based on the City’s experience, most property taxes are collected during the year in which they are
assessed. Liening of properties on which taxes remain unpaid occurs annually. On November 14, all
properties with unpaid fiscal 2001 property taxes were liened. The City ultimateh has the right to foreclose
on all properties where the taxes remain unpaid.

A statewide property tax limitation known as “Proposition 2-1/2" limits the amount of increase in the
property tax levy in any fiscal year. Generally, Proposition 2-1/2 limits the total levy to an amocunt not
greater than 2-1/2% of the total assessed value of all taxable property within the City. Secondly, the tax
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levy cannot increase by more than 2-1/2% of the prior year’s levy plus the taxes on property newly added

Receivables

* to the tax rolls. Certain provisions of Proposition 2-1/2 can be overridden by a City-wide referendum.

Receivables as of year end for the government’s individual major funds and internal service fund,

including the applicable allowances for uncoliectible accounts are as follows (in thousands):

Receivables:
Property taxes
Other taxes

Intergovernmental

QOther
Gross receivables

Less allowance for uncollectibles

Net total receivables

Special Internal
General revenue service Total

$ 37,555 —_ —_ 37,555
142,697 — —_ 142,697
78,215 56,301 — 134,516
34,849 195 151 35,195
203,316 56,496 151 349963
(165,930) — — (165,930)

$ 127.386 56,496 151 184,033

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in conmection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of
the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reporied in the
governmental funds were as follows (in thousands):

Delinguent property taxes receivable (general fund) b
Due from component units

Other

Total deferred/uneamed revenue for governmentai

funds

$

Unavailable Unearned
31,507 —
— 18,984
— 7,746
31,507

26,730
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(8) Capital Assets

‘Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2002 was as follows (in thousands):

Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Fumniture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Beginning : Ending
balance Increases Pecreases balance
10,604 3,862 — 14,466
284,221 117,075 — 401,296
294,825 120,937 — 415,762
15,507 — — 15,507
940,789 — 1,591 039,198
109,410 10,181 2,400 117,191
228,731 13,652 _— 242,383
1,294 437 23,833 3,991 1,314,279
2.062 1,129 —_ 3,191
747,281 19,590 1,591 765,280
92,997 9,346 2,400 99,943
71,977 7,708 —— 79,685
914,317 37,773 3,991 948,099
380,120 (13,940 — 366,180
$ 674,945 106,997 —_ 781,942
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Depreciation expeuse was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Human Services
Public safety
Public works, including depreciation of general infrastructure assets
Property-and Development
Parks and recreation
Library
Schools
County

Total depreciation expense ~ governmental activities

(9) Imterfund Receivable and Payable Balances

347
57
7,625
9,152
932
2,017
4,156
13.214
273

37,773

Individual fund and discrete component unit receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2002, are as

follows (in thousands):

Interfund balances Receivable Payable
General $ — 727
Internal service 727 —
Balance at June 30, 2002 727 727
SBRS at December 31, 2001 64.871 -—
Balances in accompanying basic financial
statements $ 65,598 727
Discrete component unit balances Receivable Payable
Primary government:
General $ 119,250 108
Hospital revenue bond 129,103 —
Discretely presented component units:
PHC 108 148,333
Balances in accompanying basic financial
statements $ 148,461 148.461
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{a)

Governmental Activity Obligations

Following is a summary of the governmental long-term obl igations of the City as of June 30, 2002 (in thousands):

Bonds and notes payable:

General obligation bonds dated 2/1/02
General obligation refunding bonds dated 4/11/01
General obligation bonds dated 2/1/01

General obligation bonds dated 2/1/00

General obiigation bonds dated 10/15/98

General abligation refunding bonds dated 4/15/98
Cencrat obligation bonds dated 1/15/98

Gencral obligation bonds dated 11/15/96

General obligation bonds dated 10/15/95

General obligation bonds dated 9/1/94

General obligation refunding bonds dated 2/1/94
General obligation bonds dated 9/1/93

General obligation relunding bonds dated 2/1/93
General obligationbonds dated 2/15/92

General obligation refunding bonds dated 5/15/91
MWPAT note payable

Nuotes payable

Bond Anticipation Notes dated 2/1/02
Bond Anlicipation Notes dated 2/1/01

CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to Financial Statements
June 3G, 2002

Outstanding,

Tolal govermmental obligation bonds and notes

payabie

Other long-lerm obligations:

Leases

Judgments and claims
Compensated absences, net
Landfill postelosure care costs

Total other long-term ohligations

Tolal governmental long-term obligations

Interest beginning Outstanding, Due within

rates of year Additions Reductions end of year one year
3.06-5.0% $ — 100,000 - 100,000 6,090
3.63-5.0% 32,025 — — 52,025 500
4.25-5.0% 120,000 — 8,360 111,640 8.360
5.0-575% 110,160 — 9,840 100,320 9,840
3.25-5.0% 104,580 — 7,710 96,870 7.710
4.5-525% 63,290 - 6,480 56,810 1,384
4.5% 67,210 — 7.595 59,615 7,395
5.0% 61,200 - 7,200 54,000 5,400
5.0-5.25% 23,000 - 3,100 19,900 3,100
5.0-6.0% 23,515 —_ 4,305 19,210 4,530
4.0-5.0% 60,835 — 5,300 55,555 5.920
4.0-4.875% 37,655 — 2,090 35,565 2,190
3.0-5.65% 72,720 — 11,960 60,760 15,665
4.75-6.5% 6,210 — 3,015 3,195 3,195
5.5-10.0% 8,515 -— 4,515 4,000 4,000
4.25-515% 9,750 — 439 9311 444
544.7.18% 27,620 3,839 491 30,968 2,153
3.5% —_ 62,000 — 62,000 —
4.0% 25,000 — — 25,000 25,000
873,303 165,839 82,400 956,744 113,076
27,907 8.915 10,786 26,036 8319
22,450 31,041 21,041 32,456 10,000
152,087 17,090 — 169,177 54,655
16,533 — 1,662 14.871 —
218.977 57,046 33,489 242,534 72974
$ 1,092,282 222,885 115,889 1,199,278 186,050
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(b}  Business Type Activity Obligations

Following is a summary of the business type long-term obligations of the City as of June 30, 2002 (in thousands):

Cutstanding,
Interest - beginning Outstanding, Due within,
rates of year Additions Reductions end of year one year
Convention Center Fund: '
Special Obligation Bonds dated 4/1/02 4.0-5.25% $ — 116,890 e 116,890 2,100
Bond Anticipation Notes dated 2/1/00 5.25% 27,800 — 27,800 —_ -—
Bond Anticipation MNotes dated 5/1/99 4.0% 130,000 — 130,000 — —
Hospital Bond Fund: '
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Boston City Hospital, Series B,
dated 6/1/93 3.60-5.25% 145,580 — 4,485 141,095 4,735
Total business type obligatians h) 303,380 116,890 162,285 257,985 6,835
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~General Obligation Bonds and Notes

"The annual debt service requirements of the City’s general obligation governmental bonds and notes payable
outstanding as of June 30, 2002, are as follows (in thousands):

Principal Interest Total
Year ending June 30 '

2003 $ 113,076 42,840 155,916
2004 84,265 38,579 122,844
2005 78,265 34,790 113,055
20006 126,816 29,437 156,253
2007 63,195 25,949 £9,144
20082012 ' 262,443 88,595 351,038
2013-2017 167,177 35,062 202,239
2018-2022 61,507 6,794 68,301

$ 956,744 302,046 1,258,790

General obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The Commonwealth has
approved schoo] construction assistance, subject to annual appropriation by the state legislature and reports
filed with the Commonwealth by the City, to partially provide resources for future principal and interest
requirements on general obligation school bonds of the City. As of June 30, 2002, such resources expected to
be provided to the City total approximately $217,638 from the Commonwealth.

On February 15, 2002, the City issued $100,000,000 in general obligation bonds to fund various capital
purchases and improvements throughout the City. Interest is due semiannually on each February ! and
August 1, with principal payments due each February 1 until maturity in fiscal 2022.

On February 1, 2002, the City issued $62,000,000 in bond anticipation notes (BANs) to fund various school
projects. The City will pay interest of approximately $6,510.000 through fiscal 2006. The City is expected to
issue general obligation bonds to refund the BANSs; accordingly, they have been classified as long-term
obligations.

As of June 30, 2002, the City has a permanent loan agreement with the Massachusetts Water Pollution
Abatement Trust (MWPAT) for $13.4 million. The loan provides funding for the closure and postclosure
care costs relating to the City’s Gardner Street Landfill. Proceeds are received on a reimbursement basis from
MWPAT as expenditures are incurred by the City. As of June 30, 2002, the City has received approximately
$12.3 miilion in loan proceeds. ‘

No Obligation Debt

The City has outstanding industrial, commercial and housing development bonds payable solely from
revenues of the respective enterprises that do not constitute an indebtedness of the City and are not a charge
against its general credit. This aggregate amount is immaterial to the financial statements.
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The City is subject to a dual general debt limit: the normal debt limit and the double debt limit. Such limits

- are equal to 2-1/2% and 5%, respectively, of the valuation of taxable property in the City as last equalized by
the State Department of Revenue. Debt may be authorized up to the normal debt limit without state approval.
Authonzations under the double debt limit, however, require the approval of the Commonwealth’s
Emergency Finance Board. Additionally, there are many categories of general obligation debt which are
exempt from the debt limit but are subject to other limitations.

As of June 30, 2002, the City may issue $287.9 million of additional general obligation debt under the debt
limit. General obligation debt of $373 million, subject to the debt limit, and $260 million, exempt from the
debt limit, is authorized but unissued as of June 30, 2002.

Proprietary Fund Obligations

The annual debt service requirements of the City’s special obligation bonds and Boston City Hospital,
Series B, revenue bonds, outstanding as of June 30, 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Principal Inferest Total
Year ending June 30:

2003 $ 6,835 13,939 20,774
2004 ' ' 7,295 13,347 20,642
2005 8,045 12,957 21,002
2006 5,655 12,523 18,178
2007 3,070 12,294 15,364
2008-2012 28,790 56,488 85,278
2013-2017 59,165 43,065 102,230
2018-2022 28,050 34,237 62,987
2023-2027 111,080 9,873 120,953

$ 257,985 209,423 - 467 408

On April 15, 2002, the City issued $116,890.000 in special obligation bouds to fund certain costs in
connection with the development of the Boston Convention and Exhibition Center. Interest is due

semiannually on each May 1 and November !, with principal payments due each May 1 until maturity in
fiscal 2027.

The revenue refunding bonds of the Boston City Hospital (BCH) do not constitute general obligations of the
City and the annual debt service of these bonds has been assumed by the Boston Public Health Commission.
The Boston Public Health Commission expects to meet its obligation on the bonds through application of a
portion of the rent payable to the Boston Public Health Commission by the Boston Medical Center
Corporation (BMC) for its lease of the former Boston City Hospital. As a result of the consolidation of the
BMC and BCH (see note 15), on July 1, 1996, the City received $16.28 million, representing debt service
reserve on these bonds. It was recorded as proceeds of debt in the capital projects fund and subsequently
transferred to the general fund for future debt service requirements. Under cerfain circumstances, including a
default by BMC under the lease, City revenues may be required to satisfy the debt service requirements on
the Series B bonds. :
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The Boston Public Health Commission has assumed responsibility for paying to the City an amount equal fo
‘current debt service on all outstanding general obligation bonds of the City issued for public health and
hospital purposes which amounted to $20.7 million at June 30, 2002.

Defeased Debt

The following prior year transactions met the requirements of an in-substance defeasance:

. On April 11, 2001, the City issued $52.0 million in general obligation refunding bonds to advance
refund $49.9 million of 1991, 1994, and 1993 Series Bonds.

. On May 12, 1998, the City issued $77.9 million in general obligation bonds, dated Apnl 135, 1998, of
which $62.9 million was used to advance refund $58.0 million of 1989, 1990, 1992 and 1994 Series
Bonds,

The principal amount of debt refunded through in-substance defeasance transactions and still outstanding at
June 30, 2002 was approximately $48 million.

Subsequent Event

. In August 2002, $127.8 million of bonds were issued to refund the Boston Clty Hospital, Series B
Bonds dated June 1, 1993.

Lease Obligations

The City has entered into various capital lease agreements for equipment acquisition. Payments under these
agreements are subject to annual appropriation and, by statute, are not included in the City’s debt limit
calculations. Activity in capital lease agreements during fiscal year 2002 was as follows (in thousands):

Qutstanding,
beginning QOutstanding,
Date of issuance of year Additions Reductions end of year

August 15, 1995 $ 131 — 131 —
December 17, 1997 541 — 481 60
November 10, (997 582 —_ 416 166
June 25, 1998 2,113 _— 672 1,441
Auvgust 25, 1998 3,375 —_ 1,117 2,258
March 18, 1999 1744 — 1,031 683
October 1, 1999 3,745 — 636 3,109
January 25, 2000 4,635 — 1,994 2,641
November 21, 2000 {0,481 — 2,832 7,649
May 21, 2001 590 — 200 390
October 31, 2001 — 7,290 1,276 6,014
June 5, 2002 — 1,625 — 1.625

$ 27,907 8,915 10,786 26,036
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Future minimum payments under capital leases and installment sales as of June 30, 2002 are as follows (in
‘thounsands):

2003 $ 10,875
2004 8,280
2005 4,724
2006 2,462
2007 1,250
2008-2011 485
Total minimum lease payments 28,076

Less amount representing interest 2,040y
26,036

Current portion (8,319)
Long-term portion $ 17,717

The City’s commitment under operating leases is not significant.

(11} Retirement Plans

{a)

Plan Description

The City contributes to the State-Boston Retirement System (the System), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries of the following government units:

{1y City of Boston

(2) Boston Redevelopment Authority
(3) Boston Housing Authority

(4) Boston Water & Sewer Commission
(5)  Public Health Comumission

(6)  Sheriff of Suffolk County

Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) assigns authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions of the plan to the state legislature.

The System is administered by a five-person Board of Retirement consisting of the City Auditor who
serves as a member ex officie, two memmbers who are elected by the participants, in or retired from the
service of the System. a fourth member appointed by the Mayor and a fifth member chosen by the
other members.

The City also participates in the Boston Retirement System (BRS) and made benefit payments of
approximately $4.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2002. The number of BRS plan participants
was frozen in 1946, The financial statements of BRS are combined with the System’s, however,
disclosures for BRS are not material and, thus, are not presented separately.
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Basis of Accounting

The Systemy’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions
to the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms
of each plan.

Investments of the System are stated as follows:

{a) Bonds are stated at quoted market value.

(b} Equity securities are stated at quoted market value.

(¢) Real estate funds are stated at appraised value or partner’s account value, whichever is
more readily determinable.

(d)  Venture capital funds are stated at contributed cost or fair market value, whichever is
more readily determinable.

{e) International investments are stated at quoted market value and are included in equities
and fixed income categories.

(fy  Cash is stated at carrying amount which is reconciled book batance.

Membersh'ip

Membership in the System consisted of the following at December 31, 2001, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 13,144
Terminated plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits 3,560
Active plan members 21,122
Total membership 37,826
Total number of participating employers 6

Contributions

Plan members are required to contribute to the System. Depending on their employment date, active
members must contribute a range of 5%-9% of their regular gross compensation. Members hired after
December 31, 1978 must contribute an additional 2% of regular compensation in excess of $30,000.
Participating employers are required to pay into the System their share of the remaining system-wide
actuarially determined contribution, which is apportioned among the employers based on active
covered payroll. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the Commonwealth) seimburses the City for
benefits paid to school teachers. The Commonwealth also reimbursed the System for a portion of
benefit payments for cost of living increases granted before July 1, 1998. The contributions of plan
members and the participating employers are governed by Chapter 32 of the MGL. The City’s required
and actual contributions to the System for the years ended June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were
$130 million, $127 million, and $129 million, or $85 million, $88 million, and $90 million, net of
teachers’ retirement, respectively.

47 (Continued)



{e)

(g)

CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2002

During the fall of 1997 the System’s Retirement Board, the City Council and the Mayor approved the
option for local funding of cost of living adjustments. As a result, a locally funded cost of living
adjustment of 3.0% on the first $12,000 of a retiree’s annual payment was awarded in fiscal 2000 and
fiscal 2001, These cost of living adjustments will be awarded by the Retirement Board each year,
except in years in which the Retirement Board determines that such an adjustment would substantially
impair the funding schedule.

Legally Required Reserve Accounts

The balances in the System’s legally required reserves (on the statutory basis of accounting) at
December 31, 2001 are as follows (in thousands):

Description Amount Purpose
Annuity savings fund § 995,817 Active members’ contribution balance
Annuity reserve fund 261,387 Retired members’ contribution account
Military service credit 60 Members’ contribution account while on military leave
Pension reserve fund 919,300 Amounts appropriated to fund future retirement benefits
Pension fund 804.318 Remaining net assets

$ 2,980,882

All reserve accounts are funded at levels required by State statute.

Investment Concentration

The System had the following investments not issued or guaranteed by the US Government which
represented over 5% each of the System’s net assets at December 31 (in thousands):

2001 2000
State Street Global Advisors S&P 500 Flagship Series A
(domestic equity income fund}) $ 433,112 491,635
Enhanced Core (fixed income fund) — 170,870

Securities Lending

The Public Employment Retirement Administration Commission of Massachusetts (PERAC) has
issued supplemental regulations that permit the System to engage in securities lending transactions.
These transactions are conducted by the System’s custodian, which lends certain securities owned by
the System to other broker-dealers and banks pursuant to a form of loan agreement. The System and
the borrowers maintain the right to terminate all securities lending transactions on demand.

At the System’s direction, the custodian lends the System’s securities and receives cash (including
both US and foreign currency), US government securities, sovereign debt of foreign countries, and
irrevocable bank letters of credit as collateral. The custodian does not have the ability to pledge or sell
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collateral unless the borrower defaults. Borrowers are required to deliver cash collateral in amounts
equal to not less than 100% of the market value of the loaned securities.

The System does not impose any restrictions on the amount of securities lent on its behalf by the
custodian. There were no failures by any borrowers to return loaned securities or pay distributions
thereon, and there were no losses from a default of the borrowers or the custodian for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000. The cash collateral received by the custodian on each loan was invested,
together with the cash collateral of other qualified tax-exempt plan lenders, in a collective investment
pool. The relationship between the average maturities of the investment pool and loans was affected by
the maturities of the loans made by other plans that invested cash collateral in the collective investment
pool, which the System could not determine. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the System had no
credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts the System owed the borrowers exceeded the
amounts owed to the System. Borrower rebates and fees paid to the custodian during the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000 were $8,445,000 and $14,434,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the fair value of securities loaned by the System amounted to
$173,469,000 and $248,195,000, respectively, against which was held collateral of $180,010,000 and
$258.606,000, respectively, as follows (in thousands):

December 31
2001 2000
Short-term collateral investment pool $ 174,424 252,563
Non-cash collateral 5,586 3,164
Total $ 180,010 255,727

(12) Other Postemployment Benefit Disclosures

In addition to the pension benefits described in note 11, the City provides posternployment health care and
life insurance benefits, in accordance with state statute and City ordinance, to eligible retirees.
Approximately 12,600 retirees meet the eligibility requirements as put forth in Chapter 32B of Massachusetts
General Laws. The City pays 75% of Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Massachusetts (BC/BS) premiums and 90%
of HMO premiums for medical and hospitalization incurred by retirees and their dependents. The City also
pays 75% of BC/BS Medicare premiums for each Medicare eligible retiree. The City provides for 50% of the
premiums for $5,000 of life insurance for each eligible retiree.

Expenditures of approximately $45 miliion for health care and life insurance benefits for retirees are
accounted for on a pay-as-you-go basis in fiscal 2002. :
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Operating Transfers

Operating transfers and their purposes during the year ended June 30, 2002 were as follows {(in thousands):

Governmental
funds Trust funds
General Permanent
Primary government:
Trust funds - support for parks department 3 1,778 {1,778)

Excess of Expenditures Over Budgets

The City had expenditures in excess of their budgeted amounts for the year ended June 30, 2002 in the
following categories (in thousands):

General government:

Collective bargaining $ 5,785
Public safety:

Fire Department , 2,527
Public works: '

Property management 994
Judgment and claims:

Execution of courts 000
Employee benefits: }

Medicare payments 452

Workers” compensation 358
State and district assessments 258

$ 11,274

The excess expenditures reported above are allowed under the bndgetary laws governing the City.

Public Iealth System

Effective July 1, 1996, the City’s Department of Health and Hospitals and Trustees of Health and Hospitals,
a component unit, were abolished. Substantially all their assets and liabilities, including title to the City's two
hospitals, Boston City Hospital {(BCH) and Boston Specialty and Rehabilitation Hospital (BSRH), were
transferred to and assumed by the Boston Public Health Commission (PHC]).

Also effective July 1, 1996, the operations of BCH and BSRH were consolidated with the operations of the
Boston University Medical Center under the licensure and control of the Boston Medical Center Corporation
{BMC).

The PHC receives the majority of its funding from federal and state grants, lease agreements with BMC and
a City appropriation. During fiscal 2002, the City appropriated $64.7 million to the PHC. As described
beiow, the PHC uses the appropriation to pay debt service on certain general obligation bonds, base
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assistance grant payments to BMC and a portion of the consolidation costs to BMC. The remainder of the

*appropriation is used for administrative purposes and to support the various public health programs tun by

the PHC. The City has budgeted $63.9 million for the PHC for fiscal 2003.

Due from PHC/BMC

On July 1, 1996, the PHC assumed a liability of $149.8 million for a mortgage note (the Note) held by a
trustee and insured by the Federal Housing Authority (FHA), the balance of which is $129.1 million at
June 30, 2002. Payments made by the PHC on this Note are used, together with other funds held in trust, by
the trustee to pay off the outstanding balance of $141.1 million of the City’s revenue refunding bonds dated
June 1, 1993. The PHC receives funding for these Note payments from the BMC under a lease agreement
whereby the BMC leases portions of the former BCH for an initial period of 50 years. Rental payments
received under this lease are equal to the debt service costs on the Note and on all City general obligation
bonds allocable to BCH. These general obligation bonds were issued by the City between December 1967
and October 1995 and total $18.9 million at June 30, 2002. These bonds pertain to the property and
operations of the BCH Campus, South Block Campus, BSRH Campus. Emergency Mechcal Services
Operations and the Long Island Campus.

In addition, the PHC and BMC are also responsible for reimbursing the City for health insurance, equipment
lease payments, workers” compensation and other miscellaneous expenses paid for by the City.

Payments to BMC

Under the terms of the consolidation agreement, the PHC is obligated to pay BMC $1.0 million per year for
five (5) years, beginning on July I, 1996, to subsidize the costs of consolidation. If after 5 years, total
consolidation costs total less than $10.0 million, the PHC is entitled to a rebate in an amount that will bring
the PHC’s share of these costs to 50%. The fiscal year 2001 payment to BMC represents the final payment
under the terms of the consolidation agreement and it is expected BMC will provide documentation of the
consolidated costs as part of their year-end process.

PHC is obligated to make future base assistance grant payments to BMC totaling $12.0 million each year
untii the FHA Note has been paid off (scheduled in 2020),

In addition, during fiscal 1997, the City made $20.0 million in contributions to a capital fund in support of
the Boston HealthNet health center members. The BMC is expected to provide $2.0 million in each of the six
(6) years following the consolidation in additional support to the Boston HealthNet health center members.

Risk Management

The City is self insured for general liability, property and casualty (except for boiler and machinery losses up
to $2.5 million), worker injury, unemployment and certain employee bealth claims. The City’s Corporation
Counsel defends the City in any lawsuits that arise from the normal course of operations, with exposure
limited by a state tort cap under Chapter 258 of the Massachusetts General Laws. Except for certain health
care costs described below, judgments and claims are charged to the general fund.

The City’s health insurance program, administered by the Health Insurance and Benefits Division, a program
within Human Resources, provides coverage to the City’s employees and retirees through a number of
Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO) and Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Massachusetts (BC/BS). Costs to
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the City for the HMOs, of which 10% is paid by employees, are accounted for in the general fund and are
*capped at a defined premium payment per employee.,

BC/BS acts as a third-party agent for the City in the payment of the variowvs claim plans used by the City.
Costs incurred for the operation of the BC/BS plans, of which 25% is paid by employees, are accounted for
in a separate health insurance internal service fund.

The City has implemented a comprehensive risk financing strategy that includes establishing a catastrophic
risk reserve, currently with a $3.9 million balance available for future losses. The City has also improved
systems for maximizing the receipt of federal disaster funds. On July 1, 2001, the City’s property insurance
policy went into effect — a one-year, all-risk catastrophic policy covering all City property assets up to
5400 million, after a $10 million retention. Any boiler and machinery-related property loss is additionally
insured, after a $50,000 deductible, for up to $2.5 million.

The City has established a liability based on historical trends of previous years and attorney’s estimates of
pending matters and lawsuits in which the City is involved. Changes in the self-insurance liability for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 are as follows {in thousands):

Internal service fund

2002 2001
Health and life claims, beginning of year $ 10,000 11,202
Incurred claims 61,818 59,052
Payments of claims attributable to events of both the curreat and
prior fiscal years:
Health and Jife (64,767) (60.254)
Health and life claims, end of year $ 7,051 10,000

Governmentwide statements

2002 2001
Tudgments and claims, beginning of year $ 22,450 20,174
Incurred claims | 36,041 17,610
Payments of claims attributable 1o events of both the current and
prior fiscal years:

Workers’ compensation : (13,736) (11,595)

Unemployment compensation (2,28%) (1,731

Court judgments (10,000) (2,008)
Tudgments and claims, end of year | $ 32,450 22,450

The liabilities above have not been discounted to their present value. Incurred cfaims represent the total of a
provision for events of the current fiscal year and any change in the provision for events of the prior fiscal
years.
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There are numerous pending matters and lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City attorneys estimate
‘that the potential claims against the City not recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements
resulting from such litigation would not matenally affect the basic financial statements.

{17) Discretely Presented Component Units
The following presents condensed financial statements for each of the discretely presented component units:

Condensed Statement of Nat Assets
June 30, 2002

(In thousands)
PHC BRA TPL EDC Total
Assets:
Cash and investments: $ 33,551 28,035 51,400 20,980 134,065
Cash and investments held by trustee — 1,071 2,070 7,456 10,597
Receivables, net:

Other 7,885 60,481 2,493 21,577 92,436
Internal balances — — — — —
Other assets 135,321 AR | 1,768 453 164,633
Capital assets: :

Nondepreciable 17,300 3,476 — 4,030 25,006

Depreciable 4,374 1777 987 19,868 27,006
Due from other funds 7,069 — — — 7,069
Due from primary government 108 — -—- — 108

Total assets 205,808 121,931 58,817 o 74,364 460,920
Liabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable 10,996 69,905 2,320 14,215 07.436
Accrued Liabilities:

Other 739 —_ 11 2271 3,021
Due to other funds 14,059 —— — — 14,059
Due to primary government (48,333 - — o 148,353
Deferred revenue 4,140 32,807 — 0,443 46,392
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year — — -— 859 859

Due in more than one year — 1,475 —— 20,153 21,628

Other 2,601 6.982 —— 1,187 10,770

Total habilities 180,888 i11,169 2.331 43 130 342,518
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of _

related debt ) 14,730 3,778 987 0,838 29,339
Restricted 5,170 1,071 38,187 12,541 56,969
Unrestricted 5.014 5913 17,312 3,855 32,094

Total net assets 5 24920 10,762 56,486 26234 . 118402
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Operating revenues
City appropriation

Total revenues
Operating expenditures

Excess of revenues over
{under} expenditures

Nonoperaiing revenue
Nonoperating expenditures
Interest expense

Interest income

Net change in net assets
‘Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Year ended June 30, 2002

{In thousands)

PHC BRA TPL EDIC Total
3 64,221 25,212 8479 34,608 132,520
64,537 — — -— 64,537
128,758 25212 8.479 34,608 197.057
104,900 26,234 13,956 33,213 178,303
23,858 (1,022) (3.477) 1,395 18,754
692 — — — 692
{12,000) — — — (12,000)
(9.855) — — — {9,855)
[.199 — — — 1,199
3,894 (1,022) 5.477) 1,395 {1,210
21,026 11,784 61,963 24,839 119,612
$ 24920 10,762 56,486 26,234 118,402
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
State-Boston Retirement System

Reguired Supplementary Information
{Unaudited)

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial accrued Unfunded Funded percentage of

valuation value of liability AAL (UAAL) ratio Covered covered payroll
date assets (a) {AAL} (b} {h-a) {a/b) payroll {¢) {(b-a)/c)
ooz $ 3,376,000 4,861,000 1,485,000 69.3% $ 1,057,000 140.5%
01/01/01 3,212,000 4,257,000 1,045,000 75.5% 990,000 105.6%
01/01/00 2,980,600 4,101,000 1,121,000 T2.7% 943,000 118.9%
01/01/99 2,772,000 3,793,000 1,021,000 T31% 803,000 127.1%
01/01/98 2,411,000 3,614,000 1,203,000 66.7% 768,000 156.6%
01/01/97 2,062,000 3,173,000 1,111,000 65.0% 735,000 151.2%
142.3%

01/01/96 1,834,000 2,940,000 1,106,000 62.4% 777,000

" Future cost of living increases assumed by the City. -

Schedule of Employers’ Contributions

Annual
required Percentage
contribution contributed
Year ended December 31:
2001 ) 149,820 100%
2000 143,544 100
1999 147,138 100
1998 137,860 100
1967 133,524 100
125,980 ioo

1996

Notes tg Scheduies

Additicnal imformation as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases
Infiation rate
Cost-of-living adjustments
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January 1, 2002

Individual entry age normal
Payment increase at 3.5% per year
18 years (for original unfunded)

Five-year smoothing of mvestment returns
greater (less) than expected

8.0%
5.5%
5.0%
3.0% on first $12.000 of retirement income
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

GENERAL FUND

The general fund is the operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all revenues, expenditures
and other financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.
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City of Boston, Massachusetis

Exhibit A-1

GENERAL FUND
Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2002 and 2001
(in thousands)

2002 2001

ASSETS

Cash and iNVeSINETLS.......ve i e esesc e sererems e 5 482,419 3 415,294
Restricted cash and INVESTMENLS..ceiievicrriiesenensireeeiesmerierannos 16,008 16,280
Receivables:
Property 1axes. ... eeeeerenennen
Motor vebicle / boat excise......
Intergovernmentat...........coovoeee 78,215 70,253
Departmenta! and other............ 34,849 2,621
Tax title and POSSESSION. c.ovicvirrecierceccctarr et retrcen b b 1 e 86,241 -

37,555 78,421
56,456 9,498

TOtal rBCEIVADIES.... .t veei v sevresrenas e e e ne e ran e« 293,316 160,793

Allowance:
Tax title and PossEsSIoN... v ueeirriieseranersiirressscaes s e e e (86,241} -
Motor vehicle / boat @XCISe.. e iroeersrresssessaee st onsssranas (56,456) -
L0 ¢ 1T NSO S PSP (23,233) -

Total allowances.... {165,930) -

NEEL RECEIVADIC. et tieevt v ireareessisir e essrssres s s rmsasarsasbares sass 127,386 160,793
Due from other funds......oco et e - 60,628
Due from component BNits......ocereircrmieers s 19,250 157,200

TOtR] BSSEES. 1. e vvierrrrrarerariessrressirseentusaiessessmnaresnsssensrssanss $ 645,063 $ 810,195

LIABILITIES

Warrants and accounts payable......o i, ¥ 41,940 $ 107 471
Accrued Habilities:
Tax abatemnent refunds........o i e 25,022 90,600
Judgements and claims. ....c.cccormiimiinaie i 10,000 -
SICK and VACAION. .. eemvvvrercerieneserecsercocsonessceesrranescbesseeman s 26,000 17,000
L6111 SR 86,499 69,660
Due 10 Other fUNUS. oo e esrare st evrmte et sraceccsrncisine s s eaes 727 4420
Due to component units......cvuenines 108 -
Deferred reVenile. .. ..o cviierirecrrrr oo roseb st nesa s 58,237 254,146
Matured interest and bonds payable.... ..o coveemieceeeeene. 421 438

Total HabiliEes. ....ooceeiieciee s iessesemse e eese e essssmas e nres 242954 343735

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for:
L CUTTIDIANOES . o1 vmevieeecmvesennsrranssnanssebnsssrasteatasimsssenantssnmase 20,262 38,169
Debt SEIVICE....oocviee e e - 16,280
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent year expenditures.......ccovviini 36,000 30,000
Undesignated.........coorveieimciomsrr s et 345,847 182,011

Total fund DalanCe......ccooveecreeve v rrrr e e tasasesenseas 402,109 266,460

Total liabilities and fund balance........coervinivn i by 645,063 $ 210,195
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

" Exhibit A-2

GENERAL FUND
Comparative Statement of Revenves, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Years Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001
{in thousands)

082 2001
REVENUES:
Lacal: :
Real and pr:rsona! PrOPETLY LAXES, NELrr.riremarrmacerrmssnercerrsaesenranenenes 9 W0.848  § 874,868
Excises... eeemerereseasetessaressesiaestestsesesensanitonatbeensrnen et et sanemnaan 111,114 72,645
Paymcnts in heu of TAKES 1 oovsovrerm et caeressaressesssens e sssescnreanne 36,332 72,720
Fines... 60,601 57.840
Invcsr.mcm Income.. 14,596 26,289
Licenses and perrmts 33,325 36,795
Departmental and orher TEVEnUE.. 62,200 58.306

Total Yocal revenues.. 1,309.016 1,199,463

Intergovernmental:
Commonwealth... etmreaeeaanteseteeeeia et eeatttonn b e aneraenatseenneaetn 492 299 493,278

Total mtcrgovcmmental Tevenues 492,299 493.278

TOLA] FEVEIUES. ..ociiiiie et eisree st s s st mares s ete s e snemtesrasen 1,801,315 1,692,741

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Genetal BOVEITHNET....vcrevaieerrresteree e essreosncressesrvsasaraemsen ssrsmmsermssas 71,019 67,913
Human services......... 6,434 - 5,464
Public safety....... 405,844 373,362
PUBC WOLKS. oeeeeeeeee e e ean 74,651 77.241
Property and development. ... coceererrecrmseesrreerenaces 48,774 41,300
Parks and FECTEAHON. ....oiivviviirviiivicrmrcerss s ssns s tbesessrssbeerrnrnerseen 16,230 15,547
Library.... 28,605 30,360
Schaols... 627,653 611,368
Public Hca)th Programs, ebtmedee s e et tes s s ss s r e 64,537 62,476
County.... 4,537 6,030
Judgmcnts nnd cla:ms .................................................................. 2,724 501
RELEEIIENT COSTE.1eitveiierveiriirreetsenssnarasessssesronensessersrssasassnesssnsesss 82,034 24,970
Other employge Benefits. .. ..o 107,701 90,501
State and district ASSESTMENTS....uoicviriireeirie et e s 67,769 66,783
Capital QUBAYS...co.oiiiriee et it ccimeine s emanmaeervbe b s smma v s 5,177 4,057
DBt SETVILE e vt cevi et ne e v st s sten e eamb e enbe b 115,366 123,977

Total eXpenditUIes. . ....cocvveiviiriceni e ress s bn e 1,735,145 1,666,365

BESS . teeeetiirireerir st reemerr e measrmsse e s e b eseare v rearear ey s g van e en ot 66,170 26,376

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Operating transfers tn ............. et ee b eareatareaarnsar e s naeran 1,778 1,678
Transfers from cOMPONENt WML..ccooeer it - 17,706

Total other financing (USES) SOUTCES. ...icvniiimiaieviisissremrenemiases 1,778 19,384

Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and otlier financing ¥ses...ovueeuue. 67,948 45,760

Fund balance, beginning of year, as previously reporied........o.ooenn 266,460 220,700

Cumulative change in accounting principle........ et erer e s 67,701 -

Fund balance, beginning of year, S TESEALEG. crvorsroeermerars e 334,161 220,700

Fund balance, eid 0F YERI ..o ees e creiersessrcesasreasecsnerass B 402,109 $ 266,460
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Exhibit A-3

GENERAL FUND
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2002
{in thousands)
{with comparative actual amounts for 2001)

09

2002
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2601
Classification Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable} Actual

PROPERTY TAXES
Reat and Personal Property TaXeS..oo..ovevoeeeoeeossoveeseeeesssonsnns 5 925,937 925,937 926,336 % 399 % 874,013

Revenue class total 925,937 925,937 926,336 399 874,013
MOTOR VEHICLE EXCISE
Motor Vehicle Excise - Current ..., 40,325 42,225 25,162 (17,063) 43,292
Motor Vehicle Excise - Prior Years.....oovmeeceeveceecseeeesecsesn - - 17,602 17,602 (1,471)
Boat Excise - Current and PHOM YEaS5...ovvccevevvveecerescerenrens - - 12 12 1

Revenue class total 40,325 42,225 42,776 551 4],822
OTHER EXCISE TAXES
Hatel / Motel ROOM EXCISE...cvoovivivcveeeeteeeee e 22,000 22,000 20,976 (1.024) 15,000
ATECFall FUE] BXCISE..cuurerevmmirreereonseeeeecsaesieteceseeasessnse s esessnes 14,300 14,300 16,221 1,21 15,279
Condominium Conv. EXCIS€.. ..o ovirmre e ivereeesesse e 393 395 672 277 556
County Deeds Excise Fund............ - - - - (11
Urban Redevelopment CHAZIA ot 28,700 28,700 31,659 2,959 32,827

Revenue class total 65,395 63,395 69,528 4,133 61,651
COMMONWEALTY OF MASSACHUSETTS
State Owned Lands..... vt eee i 321 321 998 677 -
Exemnption - BIesly. ..o ese e srasneens 508 508 - (508) -
Exemplion ~ QheT ..o e s 453 453 531 78 -
Exemption « Blind....ooooeie oo 28 28 - (28) -
LLOMOEY .ottt cmee e eeae s ree e e ettt et ebentn 63,492 63,492 63,492 - 70,978
Highways - Local Ald....c...oooocoiiinereece s seeeeesessss s e searesssene, 209 209 209 - 837
Veterans Services - Local Ald....ooecovvecccereeeen, 804 804 844 40 168
Pensions - Retired Teachers......... e et s et enenene 45,293 45,295 45341 46 41,393
Additional ASSHARCE......ovuiveeeceeeeeeecciee e cee s 206,638 206,638 206,638 - 206,638
Police Career INCEntiVe. oo et e 10 6,318 6,318 6,460 142 -
Local Share of Racing Taxes..........ooocoicnmeesieninscannnns 416 416 489 73 594
School Construction - State......... v eenrreeosinetet e 17,146 17,146 17,129 (7 20,199
Charter School ReimburSement.........ccoeereoviesiesrsssserssseensners 8,251 8,251 8,249 (2) 1,510

(continved)
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Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUNI)

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget {(Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2002

(in thousands)

{with comparative actual amounts for 2001}

Classification

Charter Schopls Tuition................
Chapter 70 Edueation Aid........ouee et
School Transporation Programs...
Tuition For State Wards....... ..o

Revenuc class total

DEPARTMENTAL & OTHER REVENUE

Penalties & Interest - Property Taxes. ..o eeeverivecnrceeerans
Penalties & Inierest - Motor Vehicle...oniiiecieinenns
Penaities & Imterest - Tax Titlew.onrnnn..ee
Penalties & Interest - Street ASSESSMENS. ....ovvieeceessrnenceenses
Unapportioned ASSEssments.........co s mareerannes O
Streets Paid in Advance...
Unapportioned Street Asscssments...
Purchasing Services....o e
Registry Division Fees...coommir . cioareeecsssctronenecresscsree e
City Record PubliCHONS. .....ccov oo reeereeeeeseeceereemesereenses e aes
Assessing Fees
Liens... ..
City Uerk Fees

Sale of qupmcnt. . rravsemnenn
BIECton FEES.... o serecisviimiacninirssrs s nsnrecsssssssnencsansi e

City Caunci] Fees.....c.ooieeinnn
Passport Execution Fees
Environment Fees............
Police Bervices. o rnniineiin
Police Fitness & Wellness Fees.......ovvnice i
Fire Services... e
Fire Depar[menl M]SC

Parking Facilities... .
Street, Sidewalk and Curb Repazrs

2002
Variance
Origimal Final Favorable 2001
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

- - (26,544) (26,544) (21,892
178,411 178,411 205,044 27,233 197,517
20,544 20,544 10,357 (10,187) 6
1,618 1,618 ~ 1,619 i 1,221
550,452 550,452 541,456 {%,906) 525,169
1,025 1,625 1,672 47 1,389
2,850 2,850 2,852 2 2,741
4,000 4,000 3,545 (435) 3,889

- - ! 1 6

5 5 6 1 -

. - - - 3
5 5 - (3) (8)

12 12 8 (@) 19

850 RS0 1,005 155 1,012
12 {2 7 (5} g

30 30 26 4> 22

700 700 881 181 745
480 480 77 297 560

35 33 24 (n 20

338 338 390 52 12
12,000 12,000 16,571 4,571 18,929
i i 2 H i

25 25 37 12 7

70 70 51 (19) 51

475 475 476 1 462

1 1 21 20 12

2,825 2,825 3,254 429 2,974

5 5 16 18 20

1,250 1,250 1,988 738 2,222
2,500 2,500 2,561 61 2,068

(conatinued)
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Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Revenues and Qther Financing Sources Cotnpared to Budget (Bﬁdgetary Basis)

(in thousands)

Year Ended June 30, 2002

{with comparative actual amounts for 2001}

Classification

Demolition of Abandoned Structures......o.oeeecuvsiveeeececeersenenns
Property Mgmt - Building Rents...c...ccovreicvinnnnieceeess e .
C/H Coffee Shop 8th Floaor..... y

CrH Walker Associates........
New Chardon SL C. O Mot
JOb TYIETS oot
Greetings from Boston.,
International News...,...
Brearley Collettion.. e inressssersnn
Boston Creamery. ..o eeenmerasersssresesesressvessesssvssse e
Heritage Shop.....o it sneseanssesns
Red Barn Coffee HOUSE....ov.vriveiiriinercmsinsssinessseeesressceranian
Stamp of APPTOVEL. ..ottt
Out of Left Field
L.0Cal COlOr INC..itiemeeieeecseee e s s s s
DND Other Revenue. ....cvoeceeeiniinicrecna, RSN
Special Events - Faneutil Hall............coooeommonncrsnmneeeescrirenes
Speciat Events - City Hall..............
Other Revenues - Public Facilities.
Utility Reimbursement.......ooeecnenane.. .
Miscellaneous Property Management. ... eoovviseeereeeesissennene
StFurniture Program Fixed Pees,..........
St Furniture Program Adm Fees.....co..oeeeceineeceeecesncrrenee o
Concessions-Parks & Rents.......... R e
Misc - Parks
VELRrans SErviCes..... oo sesrsnstseennns s e
Fiber Optics AcCess FCOS..ooviiiiriiiteiae e esnseeee st e "
Public Works ~ Other Charges. o oo,
Transportation Dept. - Recycled AULOS....oooicrveeeeseerecsveenni e,
Tuition and Transportation - Schools...c..cviin.. e
Miscellaneous Receipts - Schools..... ... .
Library Fees. oo eeeireceeeeceiieone eetrre e e s
Library of Last Recourse.. ..o eemireee et aens

2002
Variance
Original Final Favorable 260t
Budget Budget Acgtual (Unfavorable} Actual
30 30 61 L 205
- 3 3 -
5 5 6 I 7
3 3 3 - 3
B3 85 98 13 104
29 29 29 - 29
10 10 10 - 10
22 22 22 - 22
17 i7 17 - 17
17 17 19 2 19
20 20 19 (I 27
25 25 35 10 33
25 25 32 7 32
9 9 9 - 9
25 25 33 8 33
25 25 38 13 32
150 150 108 (42) -
20 20 14 () 43
20 20 43 23 35
- - - - 88
10 10 30 20 40
5 5 - (5) -
- - 500 500 -
- - 4 4 -
2 2 - (2} -
- - 3 3 -
- - 650 630 658
1,600 1,600 290 (1,310 2,793
3 3 562 559 761
5 5 - (3) -
550 550 689 139 424
- 5 18 13 7
175 [7s 101 (74} 71
- - - - 2,367

{continued)
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Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Exhihit A-3 {continued)
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2002
(in thousands)

{with comparative actual amounts for 2001}

Classification

Registry of Deeds Fees .
Cobra/selfpay.......... e e bbbt
Telephane Commissions - Real Property. .o smsoreoneeeren
Insurance Proceeds........omcniincincnnnn
City Workers' Comp. Reimbursement......
Miscellancous Law. ..o
Affirmative Recovery Unito.. i reesssseenssesnsnaes
Special Prosecutors Office... . i,
Fringe Reimburscments
Pensions and ANNUItCS .. ..o eemerre et

Private Detail Payrolb...............
Fire Department Special Detail.........
Property Management Detail Payroll.....cocoviccnicciecinn
AR Tellers Adjustment Account..........
Suffolk County Detail............. .
Prior Year Reiinbursements...
Other General ServiCes. ..ovmi et et esns
Miscellancous Reflunds. .....c..ooerreeieerveeree e cesaseemeceeaens
Miscellaneous Collections
Child Support Reimbursement
Mayor's OFfICE ..ot cemeccnnsescecrns e e
Miscellaneons - Treasury.. .ot esesan
Police Detail Adimnin. FE.. .o voeoiiiereiinrieereeesveneeseeaeoressenens .
Property Mgmt - Detail Admin Fees..... oo reaemens s
Fire - Administrative FEES. ..o . .oivieciee s eese e
Parks and Recreation 10% Admin Fee,
Suffolk County 10% Admin Fee.......c.covmervecnincncennrnanene .
Revenue class total

FINES

Parking Fines. ...
Mail Collection of Parking fines...........
Superior Criminal Court .....ooovcvreceeccnnn, b

2002
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2001
Budget Budget Actoai (Unfavoerable} Actual

- . 3 3 -

700 700 a51 251 716

60 60 23 (37 87

- - 184 184 1,002

1,050 1,050 4,096 3,046 733
2 2 30 28 6

200 800 1,359 559 382
27 27 44 17 3

10 10 128 118 2

2,015 2,018 2,197 182 2,701
3,250 3,250 1,257 (1,993) 423
- - 153 153 (2,173)
- - - - (250)

- - - - 30

- - 1 1 -

~ - - - 56
4,771 4,771 7,651 2,880 2,490
3 3 53 50 28
- - 204 204 (123)
i5 15 223 208 (481)

33 15 49 14 54

50 50 1,442 1,392 59
2,250 2,250 2,256 6 2074
7 7 7 - 7

275 275 263 (12) 224

2 2 - (2) 1

3 3 2 (N 2
48,331 48,331 62,193 13,862 53,100
56,300 56,300 21,514 (34,786) 19,591
- - 35,010 35,010 35918

1 1 - () 1

(continued)
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Schedulc of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Exhibit A-3 (continued)
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2002
{in thousands)

(with comparative actual amounts for 2001}

Municipal Criminal COurt..........oeeieonnceseeesssrsn s esse s
Bicyele Fines - Muni Crimiaal ..
Municipal Civil COUTL., ettt cvs e ese e
East Boston District Court...
Brighton District Coust.. ... emssne s eeessisecsssennens
Charlestown DIStret COul .. oo srare e ns
DPorchester District Court....
Roxbury District COurl. e ceeeeeesnsr s sreeeans
South Boston District Court............... .
West Roxbory DiStct COUrL......coommveerssrraenssesssreseseessecenseons
ISD - Fines...ooviemicirnissar e
ISD - Board of Appeals.............
Code ErfOrcement.. ... rrereceeisrec e stsr e

PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

Boston College. ..ot cerce e ecee s esensensenn,
New Bagland Deaconess HOSpital.......o..o.oeecvviinecsisessienenns
New England Medical Center Hospital.
Boston Symphony OTChestfa.,....c.coirerrreesisressrerecsrrcssrioen s
Old City Hatl...... .

Boston University......
Mass Port AUhority ...,
Salc of Property - Special TaxXes. ... ccoisiesnsrrmesssserne
Berkeley SCHO0L oo e rene
Trimount Foundation.............
Harvard Community Health Pan. _.....c.ooocooveoreeeererrren
Mass General HOSPILAL .cc.cceevcerieireeveeeee e,
Harvard University........ :

Suffolk University.....
Simmons College..........
Northeastern UHVersity. ..o ierecnn s s sressseens

2002
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2001
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable} Actual
20 20 12 (&) 6
. - 4 4 .
1,500 2,239 3,449 L210 3452
25 25 32 7 213
23 23 12 {11 9
1 1 1 - t
13 15 13 (2} 15
9 9 8 (1) 10
[ 15 i4 (1) 13
3 8 8 - 8
3 3 77 74 2
1 1 1 - 2
350 330 504 154 498
58,271 59,010 601,639 1,649 59,769
212 212 212 - 205
84 84 42 {42y 42
625 625 752 127 667
a5 35 36 } 34
635 635 740 105 663
3,158 3,158 3,167 9 5234
4,249 7,055 T.306 251 11,423
- - 15 15 -
tH5S 115 546 431 384
176 176 175 (1} ia2
15 15 15 - 15
217 217 217 - 39
1,741 1,741 1,635 (B6) 1,808
1,347 1,347 1,479 132 1,431
174 174 235 61 102
15 15 15 - 15
140 140 136 4) 138

(continued)
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Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared 1o Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Exhibit A-3 (continued)
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 3§, 2002
{in thousands)

{with comparative actual amounts for 2001)

Classification

North End Comm Health Center.........
New England School of Law........
Brigham and Women's Hospital...
Tufts University. ..o eeecnecncnes
Section 2C Exempt To Table.
Boston Medical Center..........
Museum of Fine Arts......
Children's HOSPALAL ....co.rrvmerrsesresereeecsiorssss s samarsessssereans
SROWZ. .. ererss e

Beth Israel Hospitak.o s

Massachusetts Mental Health Program.......cooeeeiemieeenrironn.
Bay Cove Human ServiCes..... .o sssnessesians
D0MICINA (oo e

Wang.....ccooveermecen

100 FATDEE oo e sttt raesers e aeen
Mass College of Pharmacy....
Boston Housing Authotity........ccccem.e.
Metro Health Foundation. ..o
Marriott Custom House Tower.. .
Prudential Insurance C0. e e
Jamaica Tower and ToOWRNOUSE.....o.ceiiecimcecs e
Buse Boston (Academy Homes)
Back Bay Manor Apartments, TnC....oovveiicnnneninne v secrinnane
St. Joseph Community Ioc. ..ot e
Camfigld Gardens LT s

2002
Yariance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorahle}
56 56 - {56}
13 13 13 -
788 788 788 -
396 396 329 (67)
18 18 17 )
100 100 364 64
67 67 102 35 -
45 45 43 93]
230 250 123 (127
87 87 87 -
2 2 2 -
23 23 23 -
55 55 52 €}
73 73 37 (36)
125 125 125 -
29 29 - 29
12 12 12 -
12 12 10 2y
4 4 4 -
12 12 (2 -
25 5 - (25)
73 73 73 -
101 w0 51 (50)
550 550 390 {160}
9 9 9 .
260 260 207 (53)
- - : 50 50
72 72 - (72)
- - 25 25
3 3 - 3
14 14 - {14}

2001
Actual

56
13
706
314
17
467
132
40
94
87
2
22
59
71
125
41
81
10
3
i4
71
08
742
3
295
141

41

55

7

10
{continued)
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Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND '
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget {Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2002
{in thousands)
{with comparative actual amounts for 2001)

2002
~ Variance
Original Final Favorable 2041
Classification Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
Jewizh Comm. Housing Elderly Inc a1 9 121 30 96
Roxse Homes, Inc............... et treeteeeeevaransaeatareaen 16 16 - (16} -
Charlesview, Inc.......oieeeeeeee reven- SRR - - 13 13 -
One Beacon Street... 2,221 2,221 3,120 899 2,811
Tai Tung Village...... - - 116 116 -
Mass Pike Towers.....oueenrvcinrennns .- - - a5 95 -
Jewish Comm. Houosing Elderly .o 99 99 128 2% 107
Newcastle ASSOCIALES. .. vvvvinnnne 31 31 29 (2} 28
Summer Street Realty Comp......ooincoiinen e 209 209 1,646 1,437 1,614
Rockingham Glen ASSOCIAES..........occevrvrrereeeinisessrsrnss ssaseranss 22 22 24 2 19
Chauncy House Company......iisneieiienees 10 10 14 4 27
Tenants Development Corp... 133 133 - (133) -
VIVIERGAS ASSOCIAIES . ..rerremrerirrereeeeseeretsrerrcscessssssresseesaesesens s 107 107 - {107} 102
Concord House ASSOCIAES..c..cuiiiiiereseierertiesaeamaasbarasesreseirares - - 7 1 N
Mercantile Wharf ASS0CIAIES...... cocvvieerrrmerrieessireairee s, 53 53 71 18 64
Quincy Towet ASSOCIAES v, oeereerrreeeeeerareensn 87 87 77 (o . B8O
Franklin Park ASSOCIHALES. vorvcrrrveassinon s seenresennens 77 ry 60 amn 75
Gardner Apartments Associates.... . 1 | 1 . {
Jamaica Plain Associates........... ettt craner 3 3 5 2 I
Allied Stores Gen. Re. COrp... o oevonnnceisinsrssensssissionanes 459 459 1,068 609 1,18t
Conway Court Associates....... 5 5 3 (2} 4
Jewish Comm. Housing Blderly L. 60 &0 96 36 52
Mission Park Corpu...ornnircrnennn, 5 5 - {5) 7
Woodbury Cunard AsSOCIales. ... ovveeeeereenenne SO, 1 1 - () -
Medical Area Total Energy........... et en e 2,500 2,500 2,766 266 2,773
Madison Park T ASSOCIAES.........vvvveeeeveenmmerrnerisreseorosessssmneee 130 130 120 (10) 19
Victory Gardens ASSOCIAES .......cicmeiiervsrnmccssonssnmenaesiernnenns - - 3 5 3
Reservoir Towers Associates..., 263 263 438 175 212
Bowdoin School Associates..........oovnnis e b s 8 8 42 34 1
Barinquen ASsOCiates...... ) eererrase st 10 16 20 10 7
Ausania HOmes ASSOCTAIES v irmureeemsesrmsearmreecesssssreremaestscenn 4 4 212 208 180
Haynes HOUSE ASSOCIALES «.oovvirvesisncveveriaeinseiineressee et sssasente 3 3 3 - -
Madison Park IV ASS0CIALES......c.coconrreemrirrevresiiesnemsansrares 133 133 143 10 118
Cottage Brook ASSOCIALES ... vvervave.erecorrrrrcrcrnmrecessssrensaenssesersros 59 59 53 5) 59

{continued)
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Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended June 30, 2002
{in thousands)

(with comparative actual amounts for 2001)

Classificafion

Intervale - Magnolia Associates........cuoennn

Woodledge ASSOCIALES. ... vorciere s
Woodbourne Community Housing Corp.
School House 77 ASSOCIALES. ....ooeovirine e ceesns e rnnaes
Peterborough Honse ASSOCIAES... ... e verresiresssrrcrenvanerenanc:
Dorchester Green P ccsssnre s s
Mason Place Company.... -
Keystone Apartments Co .. oo ssinseees
Stearns COMPANY....c.ovrreermrrererrnmnereserreressensssressies vt
Blake Estates Associates........ OO
Immobiliare New England,,
Servicenter, INC,.oeecve e e
Taurus At Fountain Hill...s
Marcus Garvey Associates..
St. Botolph Terrace
Fieldstone ASSOCIALES . ...ovvoviivricerree et
Hemenway Apt, Courvnnine.
Blake Estates Associates Il .o e
Back Hill Comm. Devel. Associates
Boston Rehab AssoCiales. ..o e
Patriot Holding LP........oivinci e s
Casa Maria Housing Corp..
Savin Hill Apartments Co........oocci e
Wait Street ASSOCIAICS ..ot vneb s reners
Adams and Templeton AsSOCIAICS...covvrv et eesins
B'nai B'rith Senior Citizens Housing.....ooovvevencvvvivenenncnn
Brighton Allston Elderly Home,.....c.oovoeeeiiivnncniiniennenee
Bradford Towers ASSOCIAES. ..e-vcvvvionrveecirereencessie e ccvraeasncnsnas
Sarah Baker Manor Asseiates. ..o icveeceeineeeconine e

Frankie O'Day CorPu. i,

On Luck Housing Devel. Inc..oiieccc i
Governor Apt. ASSOCIALES .u..eoiiesicceeemssiecenr e b cersens e oo
Dorchester Housing Associates
Charfes H Farnsworth Housing Corp......oiveeicemrcciinceenes

2002
Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfaverabie}
48 48 32 (16)
i Ti 45 (263
2 2 2 -
40 40 35 4)
205 205 412 207
[0 10 7 th
12 12 87 75
216 216 220 4
3 3 45 42
185 185 183 )
14 14 - (14)
73 73 70 (3)
86 80 - 80y
18 18 31 (7
5 5 . (5)
80 30 76 4)
80 &0 89 G
66 66 68 2
2 2 15 i3
37 37 422 385
- - 4 4
132 132 132 -
103 102 IB3 80
60 GO 2 (58)
140 140 173 33
47 42 35 (7}
180 160 174 14
33 33 24 (N
2 2 1 (1)
12 12 7 (3)
92 92 114 22
83 83 95 12
50 S50 48 (2)

2001
Actual

33
53

34
86

204

179
63

a8
13

68
79
60
i8

128
53
132
37
185
21
1

8
93
97
41
(continued)
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Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Exhibit A-3 (continued)
GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2002
{in thousands)

{with comparative actual amaounts for 2001)

Classification

ETC Development Corp... s issnsicirneeecsres s
RHC and Associates
M. Pleasant ASSOCIAES .-...oiuverviinirserssssensssessss e nteemeesinns
Angela Westover Housing Corp....cvoven oo
Oxford Place Associates..............
East Canton Street ASSOCIAIES v vemeeereeessersreresersnen
Rogerson Beacon ASSOCIAES........o.oceeueeesvseeseeeeeeeeeeeeerorseeees
Academy Homes Urban Edge LP....
Greyhound Associates L.t e s
Abbey Landmark Owner LP..........cooivvrrcecnaes
Orchard Park Off Site Phase I..
Mission Maift. ..o oececeeceeeerrrnenn,
Commonwealth Flats Hotel LP.....oovovooceeeereeeee e
Misc Chapter I2TA ScCtion GA......coovvrveecrrereesenss s,
Dimock-Bragdon Associates........
Council of Eldets.......c.ooume...
City Square Elderly Housing....
Boston Garden Corporation,.....
Marriott Custorn House Tower....
Allston Landing LP.....oeroeceierenn,
Commonwealth Flats Develop. Bast LP.....vvevvereeiciernen
Commonwealth Flats Development.. ..
MaAdison TrIY LP o cceececcerseveserreee e ssrereses e evesres
Revenue class total

INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest On INVESIRIENLS. ... ser s enesnreeeemsisteeenesersen

LICENSES AND PERMITS

Building Structures and PEnmifs......c..ovvimereeeccccmnisnennienens
Weights and Measures....o e e

2002
Variance
Original Final Favorable 2001
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
125 125 315 190 111
53 33 47 (6) 47
120 120 98 (22) 143
13 13 i (2) 10
42 42 37 (5) 38
50 50 32 (18) 39
73 73 96 23 74
. - } i .
- - 500 500 -
- - 718 718 .
- - 31 kY -
- - 0 10 -
- - 150 150 308
- - i H 950
37 37 64 27 -
76 76 1 (75} 17
50 50 27 (23} 26
310 310 189 {121 3
. - - . 1
164 164 867 703 -
- - 145 145 -
- - 7 7 4
26,281 29,087 36,332 1,245 39,994
15,550 15,550 14,801 {749) 26,084
15,550 15,550 14,801 (749 - 26,084
14,000 14,000 9,055 5,055 27,192
130 150 162 12 176

{continued)
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Exhibit A-3 (continued)

GENERAL FUND
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended Tune 30, 2002
(in thousands}
(with comparative actual amounts for 2001}

2002
Yariance
Original Final Favorable 2001
Clagsification Budget Budget Actual {Cnfavorable) Actual

Street and Curb PErmits.. v ieeeeees e ensss e e s 1,400 1,400 1,604 204 1,352
Pre-rental Inspeclions:.........oove....., 73 13 52 2n 67
Misc Charges-inspectional Services.. 12 12 9 7 13
Public Safety-Inspectional SErvices. ..o e, 4D 40 79 39 44
Health Inspections.......cowoviesecnnnssenasmeearssssscsesmsssseseeseossenss 1,100 1,100 1,116 16 1,665
Alcoholic Beverages and LICERSES. ....ivenecneoeveveeeveeasienereeinnes 2,325 2,325 2,303 (223 2,307
Entertainment Licenses . . e eeeenaerranes 425 425 503 78 483
Police and Protective Permits......oovrvevevvne.. crrreriens 425 425 425 - 547
Professianal & Occupational Licenses.......oveovveevovrrieaoieonns 70 70 78 8 70
Police Firearm PErillifS.....o.eevveeesue e otinseie bt s 25 25 29 4 a7
Other Business Licenses and Permits, ... 850 850 99¢ 146 [,00{
Cable Television.........c..o.... b e st 2,850 2,850 3,236 - 386 3.418
Burial PErMits. ...t ceoeeeenserr e essveree st eenens 0 70 - (70 62

Revenue class total 23,815 23,815 29,651 5.836 37,824
TRANSFERS AND OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS
Surplus Property Fund. ... 1,876 1,876 - (1,876) -
Appropriated Cemetery TruSee. ..., 1,778 1,778 1,778 - 1,678
Appropriated Parking Meter Receipis............ ettty 10,000 10,000 2,790 (7,210 6.677

Revenue class total 13,654 13,654 4,568 (9.086) 8,355

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $ 1,768,041 & 1,773,456 $ 1,788,300 § 14,844 $ 1,729,781
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Exhibit A-4

GENERAL FU

ND

Schedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended Tune 30, 2002
{in thousands)
{with comparative actual amounts for 2001)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Costs of Issuance - RANS. ..o,
Annual AUdit COSES ...t e
Mayor's OIMIEe ... e
City Council.......vcliecesin e e e
Office of New BOSLONIANS. ..., .coc.vvreerrnn.. TN
Consumer Affairs and Licensing..........cooovevicociccennn.s
Office of Community Partnerships. ..o ocoiiienn .
BOSION 210 6. oeevire e

Election Department - Election Division........ecoeeeeen...
Election Department - Listing Board.......c..cceerverevnece-
Auditing Pepartment..........oovereemeecires e,
Taxpayer Referral Department & Asst. Cntr..................
Assessing Depantment........ocooovoo v
Treasury Department - Collecting Division............ s
Treasury Department - Treasury Division......coveeeeee,
Office of Budget Management. ......oveovemeeeeeerrisirennas
Human Resources. .o e eeece e,
Purchasing Division...............

* Office of Chief Operating OFficer.........ccooovvvvroro.

Graphic ATtS..i e,
Office Labor Relations..................
Management Information System..........ccoooooeeecrernrcenan,
Intergovernmental Relations. ..o e
Minority/Women's Business.......o...ooovovivvicverisinonnns
Office of Boston Residents Job Policy.............. etreeneana:
Risk Retention Reserve, ...
Law Department...........
City CIKen oo e et

2002
Variance
Original Final Favorahle 2001
Budgei Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual

$ 500 251 231 § 20 § 202
600 600 501 99 600
1,874 1,784 1,754 30 1,875
3,931 3,585 3,534 51 3,333
78 103 102 1 40
480 480 434 46 398
1,628 1,584 1,577 7 1,583
567 507 485 22 557
2,846 2,645 2,607 38 2,650
517 198 177 2 227
6,317 - 1.952 7,947 5 3,622
439 439 418 21 412
5,305 5,305 5,260 45 5,656
2,171 2,185 2.072 113 1,381
1,831 1.817 1,752 63 1,585
2,319 2,639 2,639 - 2,632
2,390 2,282 2,217 65 2.236
1,299 1,267 1,250 17 1,182
958 889 884 5 782
1,683 1,626 1,583 43 1,440
908 897 884 13 888
11,046 10,244 10,175 69 10,779
994 924 894 30 878
662 662 648 14 580
469 469 459 10 437
1,000 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
5,131 5,099 5,057 42 4,860
893 893 864 29 840

{continucd}
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Exhibit A-4 (continued)

GENERAIL FUND
Schedule of Expenditores Compared to Budget (Budgetary Rasis)
Year Ended June 30, 2002
{(in thousands)
(with comparative actual amsounts for 2001)

spasnyoessepy ‘uoisog jo Aun

2002
Variance
Criginal Final Favorable 2001
Budget Budget Actual (Ulifavorahle) Actaal

Registry Division.........ocouviiiee it eene e 896 845 828 17 814
Management Fend.........ccooooveomeieee., - - - - 225
Finance Commission. ..o - 192 192 184 8 183
Office of Civil Rights..._............... 434 3315 293 42 351
Emergency Shelter Commissian - 600 600 584 16 624
Public Information............c...cooieieireeens 837 887 822 65 799
Neighborhood Services......ocvvvecnnnnn. 1,115 1,043 1,031 12 1,003
Special Events and Fourism............coooooieenreeene 1,270 1,220 1,191 29 1,573
Women's COmMISSION. ....euerurrrecniine e e 166 166 152 14 160
Office of Cohural AFFairs........oiiveeeeciiee e 1,101 1,024 1,012 12 1,025
Tregor Reserve Fund. ..ovcvvececivceinece e, - 1,000 1,000 - 1,282
Reserve For Collective Bargaining.........coooo oo 1,005 415 6,200 (5.785) 12,500

Function iotal 66,532 66,053 70,702 (4,649) 73,696
HUMAN SERVICES
Rental Housing Resource Center.. . 744 653 646 7 666
Elderly Commission, .., .....ovveeeemesrieesree s e sieeseesens 2,824 2,769 2,758 11 2,596
Yeterans Services Depanment......, e 2,37} 2,994 2,994 - 2,336

Function total 5,939 6,416 65,398 18 5,598
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police Department...........ooecoeiiiiiee s 219,254 219,549 219549 - 214,286
Fire Departiment.......ccoceevveiunreaerecrsevsssaseeccsmseneesssnecs 132,098 132,098 134,625 (2,527 116,859
Transportation - Traflic Division.........cccoeeecreecenneene. 19,390 19,239 19,239 - 19,060
Transportation - Parking Clerk......... 9,778 9,477 8,45t 26 9,122
Licensing Board.........ccooocrrrrmreeean 59) 591 582 9 606
Inspecticnal Services Department.... 13,307 13,064 12,960 104 12,724
Youth Fud oo 6,409 2,744 8,744 - 8,618

Function total 400,827 402,762 405,150 (2,388) 381,275

(coniinued)




[£4

Exhibit A-4 (continued)

GENERAL FUND
Schedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget {Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2002
(in thousands)
{with comparative actual amounts for 2001)

2002
Variatnice
Original Final Favorable 2001
Budget Budget Actnal {Unfavorable) Actual

PUBLIC WORKS
Public Works Department...........cveoooveciiivineeeressoeeene 65,660 68,715 68,701 14 65,531
Central Maintenance Facility........co.oeo oo 2,076 1,807 1,719 88 1931
Snow Removal. .. .o 4,462 4,462 4,413 49 10,582

Function total 72,1598 74,984 74,833 151 78,044
PROPERTY AND DEVELOPMENT
Property Management.............oovvvevvvvevecorosseemmorererssnserees 17,963 17,963 18957 (994) 17,796
Netghborhood Develapment.......o....ccovvorvvoreeieein e 4871 7,079 7,079 - 7,047
Bostan Redevelopment Authority..............eeveeeeoi. - - - - 725
Support DIviSion. ... - - - - 13,000
Boston Community Centers......ocvvverineriininennnn... : 16,366 15,594 15,594 - 14,955

Function total 39,202 40,636 41,630 (994) 53,523
PARKS AND RECREATION
Parks and Recreation Departrent...........oo.coooeeeeeenn..e. _ 13,093 13,415 13,415 - 12,721
Environment Department 981 981 981 - 918
Cemetery DIvISION. ... e veeeeee e, 1,778 1,778 1,675 103 1,603

Function total 15,852 16,174 16,071 103 15,262
LIBRARY
LibEAry DEpastiment.r....oo.oovrroovencerssremsossoseroo 28,702 28,813 28,813 . 29,981

Function totai 28,702 28,813 28,813 - 29981

{continued)
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SCHOOLS

Bosten Public Schools...........ooooooeeeeenne.

PUBLIC HEALTH

Public Health Commission.....................

COUNTY

Suffolk County Jadl.......oooveeen i

JUDGMENTS AND CLAIMS

Execution of Courls...........oerececeevnnnns

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Medicare Payments...............,

Human Resources-Health Insurance..ovvenieeecnns
Health Benefits & lnsurance.................
Unemployment Compensation.........ccoco.oce......
Workers' Compensation Fund................

PENSION COSTS

State - Boston Retirement System........

Pensions and Annuities - City....

Pensions and Annuities - County..........

Exhibii A-4 (continued)

GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended June 30, 2002
{in thousands)
(with comparative actual amounts for 2001)

2002
Variance
Original Finai Favorable 2001
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actuat
rrerenrraaens 637,446 639,729 639,710 19 611,925
Function toeal 637,446 639,729 639,710 19 611,925
62913 64,005 64,005 - 62,141
Funclion total 62,913 64,005 64,005 62,1414
4,537 4,537 4,537 6,030
Function totat 4,537 4,537 4,537 - 6,030
......................... 4,100 4,100 3,000 {900y 2,008
Function total 4,100 4,100 5,000 (200) 2,008
3,500 . 3,500 3,952 {452} 3.238
520 520 497 23 -
......................... 100,732 99,261 99,261 87,7112
50 5 5 - 12
3,400 3,400 3,758 (338) 4,170
Function total 108,202 106,686 107,473 (787 95,132
......................... 129,745 - 129,745 129,745 - 127,475
5,665 5,665 5,665 5,800
......................... 300 300 300 - 500
Function totat 135,710 135,710 135,710 133,775

{continued)
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Exhibit A-4 (continued)

GENERAL FUND
Schedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2002
(in thousands)
(with comparative actual amounts for 2001}

spasnyoesse ‘uojsog Jo Auo

2002
Variance
Original Final Favorahle 2001
Buidget Budget Acteal (Unfavorable) Actual

DEBT REQUIREMENTS
Redemption of City Loans..............ocoomvvicesreeeen o 77,241 77241 77,233 g 69,854
City Debt and Interest Payments.........o.ovveeeocencerenn s 36,515 36,515 36,515 - 35,545
Interest on Temporary NOtes....ooeeeeeiiecee e es 3,000 L. - - -
MWPAT Principal. oo e e e e ceee e 439 439 439 . 180
MWPAT TRLEIEST. ..ottt et reeeeeeeeeenres 145 145 145 - 399
BAN TOT oottt s anees 1,600 1,000 1,000 - -

Function total 118 34) 115,340 115,332 8 105,978
STATE & DISTRICT ASSESSMENTS
Health Insurance/Retirement. ...........o.ovoreocccevvnnenns 580 580 380 - 604
Parking Surcharge. .o v oo nra e 2,882 2,882 3,003 (121 2,882
Mosquito Control Projects............... et i 187 187 187 - 176
Special Education Chapter 766........ccccoonivvearirnieninns 520 520 486 34 486
Metrapolitan Air Poliution Center..........co.ocvovviinveeenns 143 143 143 . 134
Mctropolimri Area Planning ..o {42 (42 142 - {39
M.B.T.A. Assessments 63,046 63,046 63,046 - 62,227
School Choice............. _ - . - 171 7D 129
M.D.C. Assessments............. b ettt - 11 i1 11 - 11

Funetion tolal 67,511 67,511 - - 62,769 {258) 66,788

Total Expendilures $ __ 1,768,011 % 1,773,456 $ - 1,783,133 % (8,677 3 1,721,156




City of Boston, Massachusetts

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Special Revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than
debt service, trust funds or capital projects that are legally restricted for specific purposes. This fund
accounts for a number of federal and state grants administered by the City's individual departments.
This. fund provides additional support to department programs and also accounts for money that has
been set aside, generally by state statute, that may be used to support the City’s general fund operations.
This fund is directly linked to a specific activity and is available without further City Council
Appropriation.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Comparative Balance Sheet

ASSETS

Cash and INVESHTIETES . .ocvverreieetees e e ienee e sce e ee s eeearssares

Receivables (net):
Intergovernmental.............e.oo.

Departmental and other........cooooeoviirivce,

Total receivables. ..o

Due from other funds......occeveenres

TOUAL ABECLS. cvereisverererirerr e rvrianessrmarveeemmtaneeaeeenir e

Exhibit B-1

Tune 30, 2002
(in thousands)

...................................

LIABILITIES

Warrants and accounts payable...

Accrued liabilities:

[T 515 RSN
Due to other funds. ..ot e

Total liabilities.....cocvevivneens

P T T T TR Y T TR PP ST

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for:
Encumbrances and other.........
Unreserved:

Undesighated........ovcecvvieimeceee i e

...................................

Totals

2002 2001
106,093 § 103,877
56,301 27,147
195 13,146
56,496 40,293
- 4,291
162,589 % 148,461
14,597 % 10,199
27.281 21,296
- 3,724
41,878 $ 35,219
44,111 60,231
76,600 53,011
120,711 113,242
162,589 § 148,461
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit B-2

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2002
{in thousands)

Totals

2002 2001

REVENUES:

| St 1 T VU URUU. 44 % -
INVESTMENT INCOME. 1vereureeraeerareresrerrsscasssenannsensersrerassscnaernns 159 -
Licenses and Permils. ... oveoreecveorcommers s crenectvnvesonrearanens 252 -
Departmental and Other fevenUe......coreevcrnrererreeninercsnesrersnrarenss 10,478 80,467
Intergovernmental FEVENUES......ccovvvririerrirser et s e 334,961 280,282

TOAl FEVENUES. ....viireencreccestreeesimereestmeerermabe ot as e etsaeassrenans 345,894 360,749

EXPENDITURES:

Current operations:
General GOVEITIMERAL. ... cccore e crrreecenarr e iceeeccsrremeesssremeeeereenssnes : 7,131 9,312
Human services........oooveeeineenvennee. e vt e ran e nn et stonna 5.290 4,956
Public safety.... 21,888 20,556
Public works... eetreeertsirteasteianeesnteeanenea s cerane ety ermnertpneresnan 407 589
Property & dcvelopm&:nt _ 63,081 69.026
Parks and reCrEalIoN. . .ur e rereerinrereerireeetar s e rrr e e eceeneerasne 396 665
Fat 1o T ST SO U PR OR U ON 130,162 115,580
COUNTY . .oeveteeieemrnrereee v e s aserermar e eesroaeeme s reee e brasbessaaeseeiagmamsinans 104,754 87,462
Capital OUHAYS..cvvvreeecsee e e - 3,999
Debt service... 3,894 ) 4,321

Total expendltures et reare et rine s en et e b ens e e 342,264 317,704

Excess of revenues over expendltures ................................... 3,630 43,045

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Proceeds of long-1erm NOLES...........oiecimeereeesrscerenerreeeran 3,839 -

Total other financing SOUFCES.........cciiieinincianenas [N 3.83% -

Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over eXpenditires. ......ovoiiiviiiiinacie e, 7.469 ' 43,045

Fund balance, beginning of year.........cccovvemreicieinnnnns R - 113,242 70,197

Fund balance, nd 0f YEar ..o oovuveevveeceseresesessssscsessressrearsnere . § 120,711 § 113.242
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City of Boston, Massachusetis

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities. Such resources are derived principally from proceeds of general obligation
bonds and from federal and state grants. The use of a capital projects fund is especially common for
major capital acquisition or construction activities financed through borrowings or contributions.
Unless there is a legal requirement to use a capital projects fund, the use of the capital projects fund
type is permitted rather than required.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit C-1

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Comparative Balance Sheet

June 30, 2002
(in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and investments............ eeeeer e —————— $

Cash and investments held by trustees..........
Due from other funds........cccooriivinnnnn

TOLAD ASSEES. v eeererererreresseerereeeerseeeevesenens S

LIABILITIES

Warrants and accounts payable.................... %

Other Habilities. ..o.m v cieeesiieesireeevsenacisvnncsens

Due to other funds....oooovevveceee e
Due to component Units.......ooeermveeivrsecrseeenne

Total liabilities.....coccviniininiiinnicinninnn.
FUND BALANCE

Reserved for:

Encumbrances and other.........c.coeevivineeen.
Future appropriations.........ewvverievicenes
Unreserved: ‘ _

Undesignated (deficit)........ v et araeans

Total fund balance....ovvvvveeeivreereevinnen,

Total liabilities and fund balance........c......... $

Totals

2002 2001
80,537 $ 90,976
3,745 .-
388
84,282 $ 91,364
9,593 % 5,732
35 1,788
- 58,026
- 732
9,628 66,278
112,020 176,212
55,874 -
(93,240) (151,126)
74,654 25,086
84,282 S . 91,364
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City of Boston, Massachusetlts

Exhibit C-2

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June 30, 2002

{(in thousands)

REVENUES:

Departmental and other..... ... e e s

IntergOVEMMERTAL.....cccoivrerrevae reeersiearne e seessresseasesssnssesemmens naes

T ORAl TR VRIS 11 eeeeecreneveeerrirsreemcrrrrmassrare st arssesssnssrmmessenas srans srnsanserennes

EXPENDITURES:

CaAPILAL OULLAYS. .11 cceeeereemcrcneeseetiemererms b s eaesanne s e s sbane e e sona s soe e smemate
Total eXPendituEs. .o ce i ettt

Deficiency of revenues over eXpendifires..... e

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Proceeds of long-term: debt and capital leases.. ..o
Payment tO €SCIOW QREME .cc.oveeerarerevrerseesiesensoomersrasanssasrerescsssroncsasenessens
Total other fiNANCITIE SOMITES. ..o revirereseeeernseismsan s s rces e rens s raanes

SPECIAL ITEM:

Proceeds from sale of capital 888eL8. e vn e vrevnereevne e e,

Excess of revenues and other financing

sources over expenditures and other financing uses......cne i

Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year, as previously reported............

Cumitlative change in accounting principle. ...
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year, as restated......ccnsrasneeniens

Fuand balance, end of Y8ar... ..ottt s s

$

Totals
2002 2001
8,649 § 23,444
13,609 51,609
22,258 75,076
139,593 185,475
139,593 185,475
(117,335 (110,399)
170,915 209,719
- (52,025)
170,915 157,694
13,300 -
66,880 47,295
25,086 (22,209
{17,312) -
7,774 (22,209}
74,654 § 25,086
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Other Governmental Funds are those funds that are not defined as major funds.

Permanent Fund, established by GASB Statement No. 34, the fund is used to report resources that are
legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that
support the reporting government’s programs, that is, for the benefit of the government or its citizenry.

The permanent fund is composed of the following pools:

Pool#1 is used for the maintenance and improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries and the
erection and maintenance of statues and monuments for the use and enjoyment of City residents.

Pool#2 is used for scholarship awards, the purchase of educational equipment and the aid of needy
students.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit D-1

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2002
(in thousands)

Permanent Funds Total Other
. ) Pool 1 Pool 2 Governmental Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments held by rustees......o...oc.oeaeees b 43,159 § 630 % 43,789
TOtRY SSET8. 1. eeceeecre e ceeere e et eee e evae e b3 43,159 § 630 & 43,789
LIABILITIES
Warrants and accounts payable..........co.occeeenneee $ 16 § - $ 6
Total Babilities. ... reee i5 - 16
FUND BALANCE

Undesignated, reported in permanent fuads.......... 43,143 630 43,773
Tatal fund balance 43,143 630 43,773
Total liabilities and fund balance.................. 5 43,150 § 630 $ 43,789
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit D-2

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Combining Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2002
(in thousands)

Permanent Funds Total Other
Poel 1 Pool 2 Governmental Funds

REVENUES:

Investment income.......... . . s 106 $ 7 % 113

Departmental and othe; 1,577 39 1,616

TOUA] FEVRIMIES ... oot eesrereeeerseemcaeesssrmsssrsrsserestessnenmesaeees 1,683 46 1,729

EXPENDITURES:

General government.... 6,217 a7 6,284

Tota) eXPENdIIUIES. ..ot eeereeae st 6,217 57 6,284
Deficiency of revenue over expenditires........ouvveeeereceneas (4,534) (21} (4,5355)

OTHER FINANCING (USES)} SOURCES:

Operating transfers oul........ooiooiiicenn e (1,778) - {1,778}
Total other financing (USEs) SORICES......urr.ccccrrrvirsinrincinen: {1,778) - (1,778)
Deficiency of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other financing uses............ (6.312) (21} (6,333) -

Fund balance, beginning of Year........c.ovvooirromvnniiecniiine e 49,455 651 30,106

Fund bafance, end of YEar.......ccocecevecveeerecricecrcerecissnnenecens B 43,143 § 630 S 43,7713
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Internal Service Fund accounts for the City’s self insurance for health bénefits provided by Blue
Cross/Blue Shield for City employees, their dependents and retirees. The Internal Service Fund is
included in the governmental activities columns in the government-wide statements.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit E-1

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
Comparative Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002 and 2001
(in thousands)

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents........ccocoeeeeureverenn. $ 12,052 7,714
Departmental and other receivables................. 151 49
Due from other funds.......cccoeininiiniiininn . 727 791
Other assets........... et eererneeaeetee—neebieesareaannterans 1,606 1,776
Total asSetS..cveieeeieeecre e, 5 14,536 10,330
LIABILITIES
Warrants and accounts payable............cccceeue. $ 25 22
Accrued Habilities. . ..o e, 7,051 10,000
Total liabilities......c.oooevecimerinriine, ' 7,076 10,022
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted. ....oooveveecereeieceecteveaeemee v eeeeeneaeeen. 7,460 308
Total net @SSELS....ccvveveirmirec et e, $ 7,460 308
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Exhibit E-2

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001

REVENUES:

Employer contributions..........cc.cvevme.ne.
Employee contributions. ......co.evienre e nrimnenecivinie s ssanae
Miscellaneous, . ..o e ereemrensaeeseenrenenens

EXPENSES:

Health benefits and administration....cceevecveeeeeiveeesiienne,

(in thousands)

Total Operating EXpenses...... e

Changes in net assets.......ereverennes

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year.......ccoevervecnnnae

.......................

Net assets end of Year. ... eseens

$

2002 2001
53,042 47,660
18,367 16,744

510 1,807
71,919 66,211
64,767 60,800
64,767 60,800

7,152 5411
308 (5,103)
7,460 308
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit E-3

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001

(in thousands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from CUSLOMEIS....cvvv ccemrececrerir e resrieces e

Other cash received........coocvivevinriecc e
Cash paid to vendors.......ccveciviimeeciersrreereenenns
Net cash provided by operating activities

...........

-----------

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year...............

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year........ccooceverivenen,

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Operating inCoOME.........oovviivecieciiircnnnins
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
- Changes in operating assets and labilities:
Accounts receivable. ..o,
Other assetS...........o.. ieeeaerrsete e es

Accounts payable.......ccv i,
Other accrued liabilities.........ccoovcvervecnicnes
Net cash provided by operating activities

2002 2001
71,307 § 63,843
510 1,807
(67.479) (61,980)
4,338 3,670
7,714 4,044
12,052 $ 7714
7,152 $ 5,411
(38) 52
170 (583)
- (30)
3 2
(2,949) (1,202)
4338 $ 3,670
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- City of Boston, Massachusetts

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

State-Boston Retirement System is a defined benefit contributory retirement plan covering employees
of the City of Boston and Suffolk County, Boston Public Health Commission, Boston Housing
Authority, Boston Redevelopment Authority and the Boston Water and Sewer Commission. The system
is subject to benefit provisions and financing requiremernts set forth primarily in Chapter 32 of the
Massachusetts General Laws.

Boston Retirement System is the independent contributory plan system available exclusively to City of
Boston employees who were employed prior to October 1, 1946.

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

Established by GASB Statement No. 34, these funds are to report resources that are legally restricted to
the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government’s programs, that is, for the benefit of the government or its citizenry.

Pool#1 is used for the maintenance and improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries and the
erection and maintenance of statues and monuments for the use and enjoyment of City residents.

Pool#2 is used for scholarship awards, the purchase of educational equipment and the aid of needy
students.

Pool#35 is formed by the will of George R. White dated May 21, 1920. The will requires that the Fund’s
income be used for the creation of public utility and beauty for the use and enjoyment of the inhabitants
of the City.

Pool#7 is a co-mingled investment fund of various non-testamentary trust funds of the City of Boston,
The non-expendable portion of the fund ts composed of donations/contributions from either individuals
or organizations. Donations/contributions are to be expended in conformity with their respective trust
mstraments.

AGENCY FUND

Law Enforcement Trust Fund accounts for proceeds from property seized from illegal drug related
activities. Funds can be used to defray the costs of protracted investigations, to provide technical
equipment or expertise and provide matching funds for federal grants.-
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit F-1

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2002
(in thousands)

Employee Retirement Plans

State-Boston Boston Total
Retirement Retirement Employee
System System Retirement Plans
. ASSETS
Cash and inVEStMENS. .o eeirereroeeeeereraesemsrnrseenesssaseensines B 3,122,047 % 18 3 3,122,065
Receivables:
Interest and dividends.........ovcovecevrinmeeviresenre s ven e reen 6,800 - 6,800
Htergovernmental........vvoiicviinnririre s - - -
Orther... 64,886 64,886
Totaf re:cewab]es ...................................................... 71,686 - 71,686
Duie from primary gOvernment. ... earnenesieeneessmrens 64,823 48 64,871
Capital assets, net of accumuiated deprf:crauon - - -
TOAL ABSELS. o1 verrverciaescarrmceirn e se e rmans e mene e 3,258,556 66 3,258,622
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable.........co.ooeneiceiereeere et B 10,120 § 1 % 10,121
Refunds payable and other........coceerivcninicrc e 267,554 - 267,554
Notes payable......cociiicciicn - - -
Total Labilieles. ... ..o 277,674 1 277675
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and
Other PUIPOSES. ...ccvrreerr et e et rms s $ 2,980,882 % 65§ 2,980,947
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Private Purpose Trust Funds

Pool 1 Pool 2 Pool § Pool 7

19,095 427 24,343 % 27,529
104 17 106 2,018

104 17 106 2,018

- - 30 -

19,199 444 24,479 29,547
280 3 127 % 304

280 3 127 304
18,919 441 24352 % 29,243
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City of Boston, Massachusetis

Exhibit F-1 (continued)

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Combining Statement of Fiductary Net Assets ~ Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2002
(in thousands)

Agency Fund
Total : Law
Private Purpose Enforcement Total
Trust Funds Trust Fund . Fiduciary Funds
ASSETS
Cash and InVeSUMENLS. ........oocvvveee oo tstsass s erensnnens $ 71,394 3 4,160 % 3,197,619
Receivables:
Interest and dividends........coccoviieeieeiiieienev e - - 6,800
Intergovernmental.........cccoveimviieeersee e - - 0
L1 1 T USRS 2,245 - 67,131
Total receivables. ... o ieniercnaereorissercevrerasersnsnen 2,245 - 73,931
Due from primary oVernment.......uveeeivorae e ceerarncoes - - 64,871
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation...- ..., 30 - 30
TOA] ASSCES . eerceecerercrreesverrrensiaseesraae e everase e ensmses 73,669 4,160 3,336,451
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable..... ..o e mereesn vt sreecesneens B 714 .$ - 5 10,835
Refunds payable and other......coovervevvicenicenicieee, - 4,160 271,714
Notes payable. ... e e - - -
Total Habilites. .occeecirviececs i iarireere s sresine e 714 4,160 282,549
NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits and

OLNET PUMPOSES. .ooveiamireirrressr st et or e snsneneneens § = 72,955 % - 3 3,053,902
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit F-2

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS
Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets
June 30, 2002
(in thousands)

{with comparative totals for 2001}

State-Boston Boston
Retirement Retirement Tatals
System System 2002 2001
ASSETS

L0713 T YRS RPURPRUT: 426 § 18 % 444 § 376

Receivables:
Interest and dividends.........oceviccreoineienceeinnns 6,800 - 6,800 7,757
Intergovemmental................ 78,824 48 78.872 81,458
L0111 1= O SO U ORI 50,885 - 50,885 16,057
Due from other funds.......ocoiiivevienrecrerenicnne - - - -
Total receivables ... cmnieresreee s 136,509 48 136,557 105,272

Investments:
Money market ..o 1,104,405 - 1,104,405 1,225,282
MM Tttt st e st ene 20,872 - 20,872 25,578
Short-term iNVESIMENTS.....vvvceee e seiee e 110,797 - 110,797 38,697
Domestic equity services.... 800,553 - 800,553 913,041
Domestic debl $ervices. .. 294,337 - 294,337 268,852
International equity......... 342,950 - 342,950 502,997
International debt......ccvvveireecceiecc i 144,352 - 144,352 60,048
Real e8tate. . ceveiverricecieeeieieeieine e et e nerans 250,187 - 250,187 242,985
Venture capital funds.......cocevvisieesiiiciereeenes 53,168 - 53,168 52,595
Taotal Investments......oo...ocevsvicerrevveccersrersanas 3,121,621 - 3,121,621 3,380,075
Total 8S5LS..coreiricieriicernieeieieseesrereeesreeneeenes B 3,258,556 % 66 % 3,258,622 % 3,483,723

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable.....oven, 10,120 1 10,121 54,497
L0717 JSSUROT 267,554 - 267,554 252,563
Total Labilities............. 277,674 I 277,675 307,060
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and

OHEr PUTPOSES. .c.ovvietiicveenerirnaiie e aanas 5 2980,882 % 65 % 2080547 % 3,178,663
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit F-3

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2002

{in thousands)
{with comparative totals

for 2001)

Siate-Boston

Baston
Retirement Retirement Taotals
System System 2002 2001

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

EmpPIOYET. . et et et B 150,042 $ 19 3 150,061 § 84,776

EMpPlOYee. o ovcveereice e st s 89,844 - 89,844 144,971
TMIETESE. . ooiiiiii s irr s e st eetmree et s e s et et e b eaasan s s ts o5 e e som e reneaare 70,850 2 70,852 70,972
Intergovernmental. .........cccovueiinnieani e ees 24,127 24,127 25,643
Realized and unrealized Josses 00 IAVESUMENTIS . ......oovvivreeeieee e mcsrieas (252,989 - {252,989) (131,140)

Total addiHONS. . ovvee et e et ae e 81,874 21 81,895 195,222
DEDUCTIONS:
AN IS AN e ceeeeee et teietestecee e s e eees e oaeeeasseseimasnsensesessmmmnrsnensaanes 2,130 5 2,135 1,863
Benefls. ..o et et s s e s 240,589 87 240,676 228,960
Reimbursements to other systems..... e a e anes 7,299 - 7,299 -
Management and related FEES........ocveiivviinienerein e et e 8120 - 8,120 -
Refunds of contriButOnNS. . ..ccoeeeeeeer et te et neeeae s st v emwn e s ee 12,936 - 12,936 20,552
Borrower rebates............. §,445 - 3,445 -

Total AeUCIHIONS. v veeiiiseecrrisressareemaarsseeerrre e srememngeesreessnesarienes 279,519 92 279611 251,375
Changes in net assets..,.. (197,645) {71} (197,716) (56,153)

Net assets, beginning of vear.. 3,178,527 136 3,178,663 3,234 816
Net as5e1s, N OF VAT, oo oooivreerevirireeineeseeseresesieeseraesesens pessaes venssemsaenss $ 2,980,882 § 65 § 2980947 % 3,178,663
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit ¥-4

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2002
(in thousands)
{with comparative totals for 2001)

Pool 1 Pool 2 Pool 5
REVENUES: '
Investment income., SRUSR R USUTRTRUR. 1,604 % 20 % 1,956
Realized and unreahzed losses on investments............ (1,278} 1 (577)
Departmental and ofher TEVENUE. ...oe..ovevverevreeinrrscrneis 269 49 129
Tosal Operating TeVeNUES. .....curecissvnseerenesrerronas 595 79 1,508
EXPENDITURES:
Administrative and general .......ceoevennverneinenn, 1,765 45 2,260
Total operating expenses......covverervvarerevnreserrsnereens 2,765 45 2,260
OTHER FINANCING (USES} SOURCES:
Operating transfers ... cevveeeveveieceororeec e secnsrssseserens - - -
Operating transfers OUl. ... cccermmrrcrcrsnccssveerieecones - - -
Total other ﬁnancmg (uscs) SQUTCES........ renreranans - - -
Change in net 85568, i iecreneci e {2,170) 34 (752)
Net assets, beginning of Year........cccoveeevvccnienionnnnn, 21,089 407 25,104
Net assets, end Of YEAL.......covvvcveerrirecrcerc v e $ 18919 § 441§ 24,352

98



City of Boston, Massachusetts

Total
Private Purpose
Pool 7 Trust Funds

650 § _ 4,239
(1) {1,864)
13,278 13,725
13,518 16,100

10,i71 15,241
10,171 15,241
3,747 839
25,496 72,006
29,243 § 72,955
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